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Characteristics of The Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon
the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of HC International, Inc. (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Corporate Portfolio

NCILE

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) is one of the
leading domestic B2B e-commerce operators in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"). With its professional information services and advanced internet
technologies, it has established a reliable demand and supply platform for
small to medium enterprises (“SMEs"), and has been providing them with
complete business solutions. Through dedicated efforts and developments
over the past 21 years, the Group has expanded its business scope to cover
more than 100 cities nationwide, with branches in 12 cities and a service team
of about 3,054 individuals.

With its professional experience and skills acquired from various industries
over the past 21 years, the Group not only offers complete marketing
solutions for SMEs through Mai-Mai-Tong, an internet technology based
product, and relevant key search, it also offers customers with multi-channel,
all-dimensional on-line and off-line supplementary services through the
Group’s traditional marketing products, namely, off-line activities and “HC
Trade Catalogues” and “HC Yellow Page Directory”. The Group successfully
hosted Top 10 Enterprises Awards for around 50 industry sectors through the
Group's strong media recourses and customer base, which help SMEs to build
up their brand names and enhance transactions. Such a complementary and
multi-dimensional structure allows the Group to create a unique development
path amid the rapid expansion of the B2B industry in China.

Through the determined implementation of the “be-professional” and
“be-focused” strategy, the Group has been offering professional and all-
dimensional marketing solutions to customers in those traditional industrial
sectors during the past several years. At the same time, the Group has been
actively expanding into the market segment of fast-moving consumer goods
in the field of high added-value service. Based upon the different natures in
our targeted market, the Group has developed two unique business models
for relationship-based customers and transaction-based customers, separately.
Along with our direct sales, agency sales and telemarketing sales teams,
the Group provides the relationship — based customers with one-to-one, in-
depth and professional solutions, and transaction-based customers with
efficient, user-friendly and standardised solutions and business platforms.
Through these services, the Group satisfies its customers’ needs. In early
2009, the Group succeeded in passing the ISO9001 Quality and Management
examination and obtaining the certificate.

The Group is committed in providing professional and innovative services
and products to meet market and users’ needs, and facilitating transactions.
Customer experience and service quality are our constant focus. Within the
past several years, the Group’s businesses became more focused, product
lines became more precise, and business model and market demands became
more in line.

o HC International, Inc - Annual Report 2013
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Financial Highlights
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Financial Highlights
M E
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Management’s Statement
ERERS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the financial year ended 31st December 2013, the Group generated a
total revenue of approximately RMB837,721,000 (2012: RMB548,568,000).
This represented an increase of approximately 52.7% in revenue as compared
to that in 2012.

For the Group's financial performance in different segments, a total revenue
of approximately RMB693,903,000 was achieved from the on-line services
segment in 2013, and represented an increase of approximately 68.6%
from approximately RMB411,462,000 in 2012. Revenue from the Group’s
trade catalogues and yellow page directories segment decreased from
approximately RMB54,866,000 in 2012 to approximately RMB42,924,000
in 2013 which represented a decrease of approximately 21.8%. Revenue
derived from seminars and other services segment was approximately
RMB100,894,000 in 2013, which represents an increase of approximately
22.7% from approximately RMB82,240,000 in 2012.

The gross profit margin of the Group increased by 4.4 percentage points
to approximately 91.9% in 2012 (2012: 87.5%). It was mainly due to the
increase of profit derivating from the on-line services which have a higher
gross profit.

During the year ended 31st December 2013, the Group increased its operating
expenses from approximately RMB416,056,000 in 2012 to approximately
RMB603,080,000 which was mainly due to the increase of sales staffs’ salaries
and commissions, marketing expenses and agency costs.

The Group achieved a profit for the year of approximately RMB151,534,000
in 2013 (2012: RMB65,422,000).

As at 31st December 2013, deferred revenue was approximately
RMB502,734,000, representing an increase of approximately 49.0% from the
balance in 2012 of approximately RMB337,417,000, due to the increase in
contract numbers from paid customers.

During the year of 2013, cash generated from operating activities was
approximately RMB364,698,000, while it was approximately RMB151,689,000
in2012.

The board of Directors does not recommend payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31st December 2013 (2012: Nil).
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Management’s Statement
BHEEWRE

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2013, with moderate recovery of the global economy, the B2B e-commerce
transactions of small and medium enterprises (“SMEs”) in China maintained
fast and steady development. The revenue from B2B market place alone
increased 25.1% year-on-year. However, the industry still faced the challenges of
integration, transformation, upgrade and innovation, including the construction
of on-line transaction platform, the promotion of Internet financing, the utilisation
of mobile terminals, the adoption of online to offline (“020") business model
and various micro-innovation projects. All of these urging the B2B e-commerce
market place to undergo a thorough reformation. Under such backdrop, the
Group underwent a series of reformation by actively embracing the changes, and
even setting trends for certain areas.

In this year, we are marching towards the 21st anniversary of the Group.
Also, we have been witnessing a decade of being listed on GEM. In the past
21 years, we did succeed. We also encountered a tough transformation
under the Internet boom, successfully spanning into the seventh year of
operations under the Internet environment indicating a new milestone for
us. Now, we are facing another round of Internet reformation. We need to
take the initiative to undergo changes, to implement product upgrades and
innovations, and at the same time, to enhance the quality of services. In
order to achieve a sound balance of the eco-system of the B2B platform, we
voiced out the motto of “servicing the buyers” in 2013. We also provided
high quality procurement service for buyers to facilitate the balance between
demand and supply and this closing the deals.

We assisted the match between buyers and sellers through Biao-Wang Search,
Mai-Mai-Tong, Cai-Gou-Tong and Micro-Portal on-line, and we promulgated
the rights to use safe and free transaction platform by SME through our on-
line transaction services HuiFuBao, in order to facilitate more deals between
buyers and sellers. Through the "HC — Minsheng e-Loan Credit Card” jointly
developed with Minsheng Bank, we helped to facilitate Internet finance micro
loan service from the financial institutions for SMEs. Through the utilisation
of specialised sector information and e-commerce services, users are enabled
to promptly get hold of industry information and intelligence and capture
business opportunities. We also promoted the communication and activities
within the community of industry via various off-line forums, trade fairs,
expositions, Top 10 Enterprise Awards, Trade Catalogues and Yellow Pages
Directories, enhancing the complementary effect of off-line marketing in such
a way that the marketing efforts of e-commerce will be maximised, so as to
increase the successful rate of transactions.

To date, the revenue of approximately 83% of hc360.com is generated from
internet services, and of approximately 12% is from seminars and other
services, while only 5% is from the early business of traditional printed media.

(1) Products

The Group has established an on-line product portfolio with Biao-Wang
Search, Mai-Mai-Tong, Cai-Gou-Tong, HuiFuBao and Micro-Portal as the
core products, and internet advertisement, Trade Catalogues and Yellow
Page Directories as the supplementary products, and has also actively
promoted products and services such as Top 10 activities and off-line
exhibitions. Incorporating both on-line and off-line channels, buyers
and sellers are provided with quality and profession and corresponding
demand services, while buyers and sellers are matched and transactions
are facilitated.

HC International, Inc - Annual Report 2013
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Management’s Statement
BEERE

On-line Products

Mai-Mai-Tong

Mai-Mai-Tong, as the B2B flagship fundamental membership product of
the Company, has targeted to establish a reliable and diversified vertical-
industrial oriented trade platform for SMEs since its debut in 2004. In
addition to functions like product display, precise search/demand quick
match, tailor-made services and direct business opportunities, Mai-Mai-
Tong also allows its customers to grasp superior advantages promptly by
providing integrated e-commerce services such as industry news access,
online trade meeting and smart shop backend. Besides, the Group
has appointed a reputable third party certification company to provide
identity certification for the enterprises.

In 2013, we carried out significant upgrade on Mai-Mai-Tong by adding
micro shops in the new version. This function integrates with Weixin, the
most widely used mobile internet product today, to build up shops at
the mobile terminals and enable customers’ access to the shops anytime,
anywhere. Such innovation has made up the shortfall of the B2B mobile
internet terminal and kept abreast of the development trend of the mobile
internet.

Search Products

Search products are one of the key value-added service products of
the Group’s B2B business. Along with rapid development of the search
engine industry, search service has become a critical tool for SMEs to
promote brand names, acquire opportunities and achieve transactions.
The Group further upgraded its search products in 2013 and co-
operated with search engine service providers like Baidu, 360 Search,
Sogou and Google. It also provided wireless Biao-Wang Search services
and incorporated a new product Lai-Dian-Bao which adds contact
telephone numbers in the search results, enabling higher exposure of
the customers.

On-line Transaction Products

HuiFuBao, an on-line transaction service, is a newly developed B2B core
transaction facilitated product of the Group. In light of the increasing
demand of SMEs in respect of transaction safety and timeliness, on-line
transaction has become the future development roadmap of the B2B
market. Based on its own strategies and business characteristics, and at
the aim of fully satisfy customers’ requests, the Group has developed
the first ever on-line transaction service tailored to the B2B market,
which facilitates high value payment and eliminates customers’ concern
about the safety issue. Focusing on the B2B transactions, the Group
has continued to extend its on-line transaction services and develop
respective transaction modules based on the needs of different industries
so as to continue with the transactions of each sector.
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Management’s Statement
B EWwE

Financial Products

HC — Minsheng e-Loan Credit Card is a critical product which facilitates
the growth of B2B trading platforms. Today, SMEs are facing difficulties
in securing bank loan with increasing loan capital resulted from the
contracted capital liquidity in China. With HC — Minsheng e-Loan Credit
Card, the applying customers can apply credit card to Minsheng Bank
based on their creditworthiness on hc360.com. This can reduce costs of
approval from the bank, enables flexible usage of credit cards, and, to a
certain extent, helps SMEs improve their liquidity.

On-line Advertising

The on-line advertising service of the Group provides an effective
promotion platform for SMEs to enhance marketing. Each of the
industry specific websites under hc360.com has entered into strategic
co-operation with the renowned enterprises of various dedicated
industries to facilitate corporate branding as well as products and
services in a comprehensive manner.

Off-line Products

Trade Catalogues

“HC Trade Catalogues” is an authoritative purchasing guide in China.
It covers myriad of corporate information and price fluctuations with
extensive coverage and strong industrial influence established over the
years. It is one of the leading catalogues in B2B industry.

Yellow Page Directories

As a business yearbook for specific industries, the “Yellow Page
Directories” features as a systematic compilation of industry information,
product technology and industry news. This product acts as an
important reference that bridges manufacturers, suppliers, administrative
organisations and users in different industries.

Feasts for Industry Brands

hc360.com launched the promotion campaign for industry brands in
2008, which aims at rewarding people and enterprises which made
significant contribution to the industrial development, reform and
transformation, building up brand influence for leading enterprises and
thereby promoting industrial progress. In 2013, hc360.com once again
organised such campaign with success, which enables spotlight exposure
of enterprises with outstanding performance in terms of “brand,
responsibility and influence” and with considerable contribution to the
development of the industry.
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Marketing Channels

Through three sales teams, namely the Industry Direct Sales, the Agency
Sales and the Telemarketing Sales Teams, hc360.com provide on-line
and off-line products and services to different targeted market segments.
Established since 2006, such sales model helps enterprises realise steady
revenue growth with mature and active attitude to response changes in
marketing.

As one of the major sales forces of the Group, the Direct Sales Team
focuses on selling large value and high-end on-line and off-line
products, targeting at value-based and relationship-based customers.
It also provides vertical and professional products and services to
customers of various industries so as to achieve value enhancement.
The Telemarketing Sales Team was formed in August 2006 to meet the
needs of high value-added consumer market. It has been expanded
rapidly in recent years. The growth in its performance has been derived
from strengthening of its managing system, resulting to improvement in
its working efficiency and market promotion ability. The Telemarketing
Sales Team has become a critical sales channel of the internet products
of the Group. Agencies has been extending the regional market reach
for the Group to the maximum degree and promoting brands. It has
become an important supplementary sales force of the Group.

Customer Service

With its business covering over 60 sectors, the Group has dedicated
service team serves both purchasers and clients. It facilitates transactions
by way of supply-and demand match, on-line negotiations, off-line
trade meetings and group purchasing. The Group issues “Report on
Purchasers Practice Analysis” and “Report on Industrial Products Index
Analysis”, in order to thoroughly study the industry characteristics,
member types and their spreads, process of making buying decision,
buying practice, buying cycle and change of concerns, and also made
predictions and justifications on buying trend to assist purchasers to
complete their transactions in a more effective way.

Member Care

The Group sets up and improves customer ratings system on the basis
of the integration of various resources under hc360.com. To meet the
changing requirements of the customers, the Group aims at investing
more resources in research and development for network products and
the operation of on-line items to introduce products and service systems
tailored to the market needs. The Group launched customised services
in accordance with the status of the members in order to improve the
experience and degree of satisfaction of customers as well as building
up a closely bound internet community.
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PROSPECTS

Since the Company’s listings on GEM in 2003, hc360.com has transformed
itself from a traditional business media firm to a B2B internet enterprise, and
has been actively exploring its most appropriate development path through
transitions. A vertical in-depth services model is steadily formed and our goal is
much clearer.

We committed ourselves to understand about our customers’ needs, the
market, the products and services, and business operations. Through the
interactions of on-line and off-line marketing, we help enterprises to establish
internet sales network and on-line transaction channel. After years of
developing efforts, our proprietary and sustainable development strategy is
gradually formed, focusing on three major strategies of B2B domestic trading,
vertical industry segmentation and “transaction + media services”.

In 2014, we will continue to carry out the three major strategies to satisfy the
need of SMEs and provide valuable services by constant products innovation
and value-added services offerings. Provision of transaction services will
be our important task for the coming year. Through a highly value-added,
customised, specialised product and service solution, our customers shall enjoy
superior business experience.

Professional and dedication are always the core DNA of hc360.com, these
characteristics determine our focus on vertical integration and horizontal
alignments strategies. With our distinguish way of doing business, along
with our leading partners, we are able to provide one-stop solution for SMEs
via our platform, helping them to build a long standing business with track
records and heritage.

Aged 21, hc360.com had grown with SMEs across the country and had
experienced joy and tears together for the past 21 years. In the future, we will
continue to do so and to build China’s domestic B2B e-commerce platform, a
prospect, challenging and glorious future!

At last, on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of Directors, | would like to take
this opportunity to thank the management and every member of the Group
for their on-going dedication and hard work in the past year.

Guo Jiang
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Beijing, PRC
18th March 2014
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Biographic Details of Directors and Senior Man
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DIRECTORS
As at 31st December 2013, the Board comprised:

Executive Directors

GUO Fansheng

Aged 58, is an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”). Mr. Guo found the Group in October 1992 and is responsible
for the overall strategic development and policy of the Group. From 1990 to
1992, Mr. Guo worked as a manager in a State-owned business information
company in Beijing. From 1987 to 1990, Mr. Guo served as a director of the
Liaison Office and General Office of the Economic System Reform Institute
under the State Commission for Economic Restructuring, and as the deputy
director of the Western China Development Research Centre. Prior to working
at the State Commission for Economic Restructuring, Mr. Guo served from
1982 to 1987 as a senior official in the government of the Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region. Mr. Guo obtained a bachelor degree in industrial
economics from Renmin University of China in 1982. Mr. Guo is the uncle
of Mr. Guo Jiang, an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company.

GUO Jiang

Aged 40, is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Guo joined the Group in 1996 as a sale manager and
became the chief executive officer of the Group in 2008 and is responsible
for overseeing the operations of the Group. Prior to that, Mr. Guo spent
two years at the Broadcasting Science Institute of the State Administration
of Radio, File and Television as an assistant to director. Mr. Guo graduated
from the Harbin University of Commerce in 1994 with a bachelor degree in
computer science. He also attended the Business Administration Course for
Senior Management of Modern Enterprises conducted by Guanghua Business
School of Peking University in 2002. Mr. Guo is the nephew of Mr. Guo
Fansheng, an executive Director and the Chairman and the spouse of Ms.
Geng Yi, a vice-president of the Group.

LEE Wee Ong

Also known as Alex Lee, aged 44, is an executive Director and the chief
financial officer of the Company. Mr. Lee graduated from the Northern
University of Malaysia with a bachelor degree in accounting in 1993. Mr.
Lee spent 6 years with Colonial First State Investments Group and Hambros
Australia as a fund manager and was seconded to CMG CH China Funds
Management. Mr. Lee had been the chief financial officer of the Company,
and subsequently the chief strategy officer of the Company from 2000 to
2006. Mr. Lee is the founder of AlexCybot (Beijing) Technology Company
Limited (28 J&EH (b R) BB A 7)), while holding directorship in
MultiVision (Beijing) Technology Company Limited (JPZ=#48 (b R) BRI A
BR 72 ®]) and Beijing WaterCompass Digital GIS Technology Company Limited
b FUKE BB T IR SRR AR A F]). Mr. Lee served as an independent
non-executive Director from September 2011 to June 2012 and has been
serving as an executive Director since July 2012.
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Non-Executive Directors

LI Jianguang

Aged 48, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Li is a senior partner of IDG Capital
Partners. Mr. Li is also a member of IDG Technology Venture Investments,
LLC, which is the general partner of IDG Technology Venture Investments,
LP. Mr. Li is responsible for the investment management of IDG’s China-
related early funds and IDG — Accel China Growth Fund. Prior to that, Mr.
Li worked in Crosby Asset Management Limited as an investment manager.
Mr. Li graduated from Peking University in 1987 with a bachelor degree in
economics and attained a master degree from Guelph University in Canada in
1994. Mr. Li has been serving as a non-executive Director since August 2006.

GUO Wei

Aged 50, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Guo is currently the Chairman
and executive director of Digital China Holdings Limited. Mr. Guo obtained
a master degree from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of
Science (formerly known as Graduate School of the University of Science
and Technology of China) in 1988. He joined the Legend Group in 1988
and was once an executive director and senior vice-president of the Legend
Group. He is currently a member of the 12th National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, member of the Advisory
Committee for State Informatization, and president of Beijing Informatization
Association. Mr. Guo is currently an independent non-executive director of
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd ( F& B R EHREBITRMER
/xal), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Guo is also the
chairman of Digital China Information Service Company Ltd. (181252 5
FRGAX D AR F]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange; a
director of Digiwin Software Co., Ltd. (REEFIZHERAR]), a company
listed on the ChiNext; Mr. Guo was a director of SJI Inc., a company listed
on the Jasdaq Securities Exchange Inc. up to 8th August 2013. Mr. Guo
served as an independent non-executive Director from March 2002 to June
2011 and has been serving as a non-executive Director since June 2011. Mr.
Guo is interested in approximately 6.75% (including shares and underlying
shares derived from share options) of the entire issued share capital of Digital
China Holdings Limited, who is, in turns, indirectly interested in 137,758,107
Shares (representing approximately 20.81% of the issued share capital of the
Company) held by Talent Gain Developments Limited date of this report.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

ZHANG Ke

Aged 60, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Zhang is a certified
public accountant in the PRC and is currently the chairman and chief partner
of ShineWing Certified Public Accountants. He graduated from Renmin
University of China in 1982 with a bachelor degree in economics majoring
in industry economics. He has about 30 years experience in the fields of
economics, accounting and finance. Mr. Zhang is currently a vice-president
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the
Certified Public Accountants Examination Committee of the Ministry of
Finance, a member of Internal Control Standard Committee of the Ministry
of Finance and a vice-president of Beijing Association of Forensic Science.
Mr. Zhang has been serving as an independent non-executive Director since
March 2003.

XIANG Bing

Aged 51, is an independent non-executive Director. Dr. Xiang is a Professor
of Accounting and the founding Dean of Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business. He previously taught in the Peking University, Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology and China-Europe International Business School.
Dr. Xiang graduated from the University of Alberta with a doctorate degree.
Dr. Xiang has been serving as an independent non-executive Director since
March 2002.

ZHANG Tim Tianwei

Aged 50, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Zhang graduated
from Tsinghua University (&% A Z2) at the Faculty of Precision Instruments
& Mechanology in July 1986. He obtained a Master of Economics from
the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (Bt &%) and a Master
of Business Administration (MBA) from the The University of Chicago. Mr.
Zhang has over 20 years of experience in financial and business management.
He was the founder and managing director of Taconic Capital Ltd. from
September 2003 to September 2005. He acted as the vice-chairman and
general manager of Unicredit China Capital Limited from September 2005 to
June 2007. He served as the managing director of J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia
Pacific) from July 2007 to October 2011 and acted as the chairman of J.P.
Morgan (China) Venture Capital Investment Co. Ltd. since its foundation in
2010 to October 2011. He served as the managing director of Taconic Capital
Group from November 2011 to March 2012. Mr. Zhang is the chief operating
officer of China Merchants Capital Management Ltd since April 2012. Mr.
Zhang has been serving as an independent non-executive Director since
November 2011.

After 2013, Mr. Yang Ning has been appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 17th January 2014. Please also referred to the paragraph headed
“Senior Staff” below for biographic details of Mr. Yang.
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SENIOR STAFF

As at 31st December 2013, the management of the Company comprised the
following members:

YANG Ning

Aged 36, Mr. Yang is the president of the Group and a general manager of
an e-commerce subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Yang has been appointed as
an executive Director with effect from 17th January 2014. Mr. Yang joined
the Group in October 2006 and has over 14 years of managerial operating
experiences in B2B industry. He worked for Alibaba Group from October
1999 to June 2005. He worked in SGS (Societe Generale de Surveillance) of
Switzerland and was engaged in marketing and sales administration of light
industrial products in northern China prior to joining the Group.

Mr. Yang graduated from Hangzhou Dianzi University with a Bachelor Degree
in Engineering. He also completed his MBA degree from China Europe
International Business School in 2012.

GENG Yi

Aged 40, is a vice-president and the chief human resources officer of the
Group, Ms. Geng joined the Group in August 1995 as an editor and was
appointed as the sales director of the Group in January 2006.

Ms. Geng graduated from the University of International Business and
Economics and gained a MBA degree. Ms. Geng Yi is the spouse of Mr. Guo
Jiang, an executive Director.

GUO Gang

Aged 34, is a vice-president and the chief technology officer of the Group. Mr.
Guo joined the Group in December 2004 and has assumed various positions
including manager of Mai-Mai-Tong development department, research and
development director of Mai-Mai-Tong development department and research and
development director of core product research and development center. Mr. Guo
has accumulated over 11 years of experience in respect of software research and
development and team management in the areas of B2B and telecommunication.
Before joining the Group, he worked for 1t S KR @EE T B R A7) and b=
HIERA R R B R A A, responsible for software research and development and
team management.

Mr. Guo graduated from the Inner Mongolia University in 2002, and obtained
master degree in engineering from the Beijing University of Posts and
Telecommunications in 2011. From July 2013, he has started the postgraduate
diploma programme in Information Strategy and Business Transformation
organized by the University of Hong Kong.
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LI Tao

Aged 35, is a vice-president and the chief marketing officer of the Group.
Mr. Li joined the Group in October 1998 and has assumed various positions
including IT operation director and information director, responsible for the
Informatization of hc360.com, building of call center platform, network
operation and optimization of basic information system. He was appointed
as the chief marketing officer of the Group in December 2012. Accumulated
over 10 years of experience in Internet technology and operation, he is
also the committee member of iTech Club, a renowned club for Internet
technology elites.

Mr. Li graduated from the Renmin University of China with a bachelor degree
in management. He has started a master degree programme of EMBA in the
Business School of the Chinese University of Hong Kong from October 2013.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31st December 2013, the Group’s cash and bank balances increased by
approximately RMB602,537,000 from approximately RMB422,552,000 as at
31st December 2012 to approximately RMB1,025,089,000.

The Group had loans and finance lease obligation amounted to approximately
RMB115,753,000 as at 31st December 2013 (2012: RMB4,162,000). Gearing
ratio of the Group was approximately 12.9% (2012: 1.2%) as at 31st
December 2013, calculated with reference to loans (including finance lease
obligations) and capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s equity
holders of approximately RMB897,278,000 (2012: RMB345,784,000). The
capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s equity holders increased by
approximately RMB551,494,000 as compared to last year.

The Group's net current assets amounted to approximately RMB585,484,000
as at 31st December 2013 (2012: RMB171,338,000). Its current ratio, which
is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities, was approximately
1.94 times as at 31st December 2013 as compared to approximately 1.43
times as at 31st December 2012.

The Group's trade receivables turnover has decreased from approximately
13.6 days in 2012 to approximately 6.66 days in 2013.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

A Business Review and a Financial Review of the Group are set out on page 7
to 11 of this report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS ACQUISITION OF
LAND IN SHUNDE

On 5th February 2013, Guangdong Huicong Household Appliances
City Investment Co., Ltd.* EH Z B X T & & AR A A (the “Shunde
Subsidiary”), an indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
whose equity interest was owned at the relevant time as to 59% by Huicong
(Tianjin) E-Commerce Industry Investment Co., Ltd.* (212 (X%)EFig55
EXREAMRAT) (“Tianjin HC"), as to 16.5% by Foshan Shunde Bo Shi
Investment Co., Ltd.* (U T EZE R FEREBR A F), as to 24.5% by
Foshan Shunde Cheng Shun Assets Management Co., Ltd.* (8 [ T JIE 1=
23 B4 Z % 1B AR A F), won the public tender for the sale of the land
use rights of a land with a planned land area of 43,964.82 square meters
and located at No.8, East of State Road 105, Beijiao Town, Shunde, Foshan,
Guangdong Province (BEEE4 # L IEfE1L /2481056038 AI85F) of the PRC
(the “Land”) at the consideration of RMB334,480,000.
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The Shunde Subsidiary and Foshan Shunde Land and Property Transactions
Centre (1M EZR tibEEZ 55 .0) have signed a Confirmation on
Completion of the Sale of Land Used Rights (B4 #2235 A {F FAEEMNE H iz
KRZHEZRZE) on 5th February 2013. The Shunde Subsidiary has entered into
the transfer contract for land use rights of state-owned land (B4 £ s F
HEHEARZE) in respect of the Land with The Land Construction and Water
Conservancy Bureau of Shunde, Foshan, and the consideration was fully paid
by the Shunde Subsidiary on 4th March 2013.

The said land acquisition constituted a major transaction for the Company
and subject to, among other things, the approval by the Shareholders under
Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules. Shareholders’ advanced approval and
authorities were granted to the Directors for the said land acquisition in
advance by the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 4th February 2013. Please also refer to the circular of the
Company dated 18th January 2013, and the announcements of the Company
dated 4th February 2013 and 5th February 2013, respectively, for further
details of the said land acquisition.

On 20th December 2013, Foshan Shunde Beijiao Investment Management
Co., Ltd.* (LT B/ R AL ER B EEBRAF), an independent third party,
injected RMB50,000,000 into the Shunde Subsidiary and subscribed 10%
of its equity interest. As at the date of this announcement, Tianjin HC owns
53.1% of the equity interest of the Shunde Subsidiary.

GENERAL CONTRACTING CONSTRUCTION AND
MANAGEMENT CONTRACT FOR HUICONG
HOUSEHOLD APPLIANCES CITY PROJECT

On 1st November 2013, the Shunde Subsidiary entered into a general
contracting construction and construction management (the “Construction
Contract”) with China Huaxi Corporation Limited (1 BZEFE (> 2GR A7) (the
“Contractor”) in respect of the construction and construction management
works of the Huicong Household Appliance City Project on the Land at a
contract sum of RMB308,880,000.

The transactions contemplated under the Construction Contract constitute
a discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter 19 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Please also refer to the announcement of the Company dated 1st
November 2013.

ESTABLISHMENT OF A JOINT VENTURE COMPANY
IN CHONGQING

On 4th December 2013, the Company and Digital China Holdings Limited
("Digital China"”) entered into the joint venture agreement (the “Chongging
JV Agreement”), pursuant to which the parties (or its nominee subsidiary)
agreed to, among other things, establish Chongqging Digital China
Huicong Micro-Credit Co., Ltd. (EEMMNEHEZI N EEFER A A) (the
“Chongging JV Company”), which will be owned as to 60% by Digital China
and as to 40% by the Company (or their respective nominee subsidiaries) for
the purpose of the development and operation of the micro-credit internet
financing business.

*  For identification only
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Pursuant to the Chongging JV Agreement, the total registered capital
of the Chongging JV Company shall be RMB1,000,000,000, of which
RMB600,000,000 will be contributed by Digital China in cash and
RMB400,000,000 will be contributed by the Company in cash.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Chongqging JV Agreement exceed 25% but are
less than 100%, the entering into of the Chongging JV Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder constitutes a major transaction for the
Company under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules.

In addition, as Digital China is a substantial shareholder of the Company
interested in approximately 20.96% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the Chongging JV Agreement, Digital China is
a connected person of the Company. The entering into the Chongging JV
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder therefore also
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules and is subject to, among other things, the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The entering into the Chongging JV Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder was approved by independent shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 9th January 2014.

Please also refer to the announcements of the Company dated 4th December
2013 and 9th January 2014, and the circular of the Company dated 20th
December 2013.

ESTABLISHMENT OF HUI DE HOLDINGS CO., LTD.

On 9th December 2013, Tianjin HC (a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group), Tianjin Lekun Enterprise Management and Consultancy Partnership
(Limited Partnership) (K4t P EER AR BLE (BRAI)) (“Tianjin
Lekun”), and Beijing Zhong Ding Bo Rui Investment Management Co., Ltd. (1t
R SRIRIR A B AR AR]) (“Zhongding Borui”) entered into the a joint
venture agreement (“Huide JV Agreement”), pursuant to which the parties
agreed to, among other things, establish Hui De Holding Co., Ltd. (Z{=2h%
AFR/AF]) (“"Hui De Company”). Hui De Company will be owned as to 20%
by Tianjin HC, as to 40% by Tianjin Lekun and as to 40% by Zhongding Borui.
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Beijing Le Peng De Tai Investment Co., Ltd. (At REPEERILEBR A A))
(“Beijing Lepeng”) is a substantial shareholder of Tianjin HC holding 40%
of its equity interest as at the date of the Huide JV Agreement, and thus a
connected person of the Company, and it is the general partner of Tianjin
Lekun responsible for implementation of the partnership affairs. Tianjin Lekun,
being an associate of Beijing Lepeng, is a connected person of the Group.
As Zhongding Borui is controlled by Mr. Guo Wei, a non-executive Director,
Zhongding Borui is a connected person of the Company. As such, the
entering into of the Huide JV Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constitute a connected transaction of the Company pursuant to
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios
for the Huide JV Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
are below 5%, the Huide JV Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder is subject to, among other things, reporting and announcement
requirements, but is exempted from independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Please also refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 9th December 2013.

CHANGE OF PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER AGENT IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

With effect from 26th January 2013, the Company'’s principal share registrar
and transfer agent in the Cayman Islands has been changed to Royal Bank of
Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited at 4th Floor, Royal Bank House, 24
Shedden Road, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1110, Cayman Islands.

PROPOSED TRANSFER OF LISTING

On 20th May 2013, the Company submitted a formal application to the Stock
Exchange for the transfer of listing of the shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
from GEM to the Main Board under the transfer of listing arrangement
pursuant to Chapter 9A of the Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities
on the Stock Exchange. The Company has withdrawn the application as
the Company was not able to meet the ownership continuity and control
requirement then. Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
20th May and 8th August 2013 for details.

The Company is actively considering re-activating the proposed transfer of
listing, and will make further announcement as and when appropriate.

PLACING OF EXISTING SHARES AND SUBSCRIPTION
OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

On 27th September 2013, the Company, Mr. Guo Jiang, Mr. Guo Fansheng
(collectively the “Vendors”), Jefferies Hong Kong Limited, Oriental Patron
Securities Limited and First Shanghai Securities (collectively, the “Placing
Agents”) entered into the Placing and Subscription Agreement pursuant to
which (i) the Placing Agents, as placing agents of the Vendors, are appointed
by the Vendors to procure purchasers of up to an aggregate of 72,000,000
Shares at a placing price of HK$7.50 per Share on a best efforts basis; and
(ii) the Vendors conditionally agreed to subscribe for up to an aggregate of
72,000,000 Shares at a subscription price of HK$7.50 per Share. The final
number of Shares to be subscribed by and issued to the Vendors shall equal
the number of Shares held by each of them and successfully placed in the
placing.
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The placing and subscription were completed on 2nd October 2013 and 7th
October 2013, respectively, in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the Placing and Subscription Agreement. In respect of the placing, a total of
72,000,000 Shares (with an aggregate nominal value of HK$7,200,000 based
on the par value of HK$0.1 per Share) have been successfully placed to not
less than six placees at the placing price of HK$7.50 per Share, and in respect
of the subscription, a total of 72,000,000 new Shares have been issued to
the Vendors at the subscription price of HK$7.50 per Share. The net proceeds
from the subscription amount to approximately HK$520,000,000, and the
net proceeds raised per Share is approximately HK$7.22. The closing price
per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 26th September 2013 was
HK$8.54.

Such net proceeds had been/are intended to be used for the following purposes:

(@)  not more than HK$429,000,000 for the organic expansion of existing online
B2B marketplace by adding new vertical websites and introducing new
services such as internet financing, payment solutions, and online transaction
services;

(b)  not more than HK$78,000,000 for the “Online + Offline” initiatives across
the value chain, including construction of new offline marketplace facilities
in selected locations and developing new clients in region(s) with a strong
vertical sector concentration; and

(c)  the remaining proceeds for working capital and general corporate uses of
the Group.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 27th September
2013 and 7th October 2013.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The total number of issued shares of the Company was 659,579,618 as at
31st December 2013.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION

The success of the Group depends on the skills, motivation and commitment
of its staff. As at 31st December 2013, the total number of Group's
employees were 3,054, among which 2,208 were employed in the Sales and
Marketing Division, 193 were employed in the Editorial Division, 233 were
employed in the Information Technology Division and the remaining were
employed in other divisions of the Group.

Remuneration of employees is generally in line with the market trend and
commensurate with the salary level in the industry, with share options
granted to employees based on individual performance. Other benefits to the
Group's employees include medical insurance, retirement schemes, training
programmes and educational subsidies.

e HC International, Inc - Annual Report 2013
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31st December 2013, the Group has bank borrowings amounting to
RMB24,838,000 and undrawn banking facilities of RMB255,162,000, which
are secured by land use rights, investment properties and properties under
development.

EXCHANGE RISK

As the Group's operations are principally in the PRC and majority assets and
liabilities of the Group are denominated in RMB, the Directors believe that the
Group is not subject to significant exchange risk.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31st December 2013, the Group had no contingent liability (2012: Nil).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Mr. Yang Ning has been appointed as an executive Director with effect from
17th January 2014. The Board resolved to grant to Mr. Yang Ning 3,000,000
shares of the company under the Employees’ Share Award Scheme adopted
on 17th November 2011.

Following the appointment of Mr. Yang as an executive Director on 17th
January 2014, the loan in the principal amount of HK$2,464,384 (being Hong
Kong dollars equivalent of RMB2,000,000) granted by the Company to Mr.
Yang, as a selected employee, pursuant to the Employees’ Share Scheme
adopted on 21st December 2012 constitute a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. As certain of the
percentage ratios in respect of the Loan was higher than 0.1% but below
5%, the Loan is subject to reporting and announcement requirements, but
exempted from independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Loan, together with Mr. Yang's self-
funded amount of HK$1,232,192, was applied to purchase 1,289,939 Shares
under the Employees’ Share Scheme. Please also refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 17th January 2014 for further details of the Loan.

With effect from 3rd March 2014, the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong has been changed to 18/F, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the financial year ended 31st December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's
principal activities for the financial year ended 31st December 2013.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the financial year by business
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the financial year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 55.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 31st December 2013.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in retained earnings of the Group during the
financial year are set out on page 60.

Details of the movements in other reserves of the Group are set out in note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options of the Company
are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31st December 2013, calculated
under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
RMB558,136,000 (2012: RMB153,906,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 5 of this report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report

were:

Mr. Guo Fansheng (Chairman)

Mr. Guo Jiang

(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lee Wee Ong

(Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Yang Ning (President)

Mr. Li Jianguang'’
Mr. Guo Wei'

Mr. Zhang Ke*

Dr. Xiang Bing*
Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei#

1 non-executive Directors

(appointed on 21st March 2000)
(appointed on 1st August 2006)

(appointed on 9th September 2011 as an
independent non-executive Director and
re-designated as an executive Director
on 1st July 2012)

(appointed on 17th January 2014)

(appointed on 1st August 2006)

(appointed on 8th March 2002 as an
independent non-executive Director and
re-designated as a non-Director on 10th
June 2011)

(appointed on 28th March 2003)

(appointed on 8th March 2002)
(appointed on 1st November 2011)

# independent non-executive Directors

In accordance with Article 86 of the Company's articles of association (“Articles
of Association”), Mr. Yang Ning, appointed as an executive Director on 17th
January 2014, will be subject to, and eligible offer himself for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Guo Jiang, Mr. Guo Wei and Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.
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eport of the Directors

DIRECTORS' PROFILE

The Directors’ profile is set out on pages 13 to 15.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Guo Fansheng, Mr. Guo Jiang, Mr. Lee Wee Ong and Mr.
Yang Ning has entered into a director’s service contract with the Company,
whereby each of them has accepted the appointment as an executive Director
of the Company for a term of three years from 30th November 2012, 1st
August 2012, 1st July 2012 and 17th January 2014 respectively, which may
be terminated by either party giving three months’ prior written notice or
otherwise in accordance with the terms of their respective service contracts.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, Dr. Xiang Bing, Mr. Zhang
Ke and Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei, has entered into a director’s service contract
with the Company, whereby each of Dr. Xiang Bing, Mr. Zhang Ke and
Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei has accepted the appointment for a term of one
year, and the service contracts shall be renewed automatically at the end
of the term. Either party may terminate the service contract at any time by
giving one month’s prior written notice or in accordance with the terms
of their respective service contracts. There is no service contract, which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation), in respect of any director
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above and in note 28 and note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director was materially interested, whether directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company, its holding company, or any of its fellow subsidiaries and
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR STAFF EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors and senior staff emoluments for the year are set out in
notes 28 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments of the Directors and the senior staff are determined based on
the operating results of the Group, individual performance and/or prevailing
market conditions. The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme
and the Share Award Scheme as an incentive to Directors and senior staff.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31st December 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or required to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by the Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of
the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

EERITRARNA QTR EBEE
B2 5 HERORESR 2ERZR

2

MZE—=F+-_F=+—H EFRAQEITHE
HRARA RS HAEEEE (BB BB EHIFE571
BEHRAE GO EH RS G ])EXVIE T
EYRE) 2B - BERGD REHT - BAREES
REAEEDIEXVEBNETRESH BN EEARA K
B P s RoA B (B IEIRIRE S R AE LA A
16 S AT B Sk AR VERE B i e sOK ) - B
RIE B A R EEPE32FRARRFFENEL
i - sARIRAIFEAR TR RIS 5 4616 FTILE B E S
TEHF R HHIREERNNE AR A R FT 2 e &
KEWT

(a) Directors’ Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of (a) EERAATRGRAAERAZHFE
the Company
Total Percentage
Class of Personal Family  Corporate Other  number of of shareholding
Name of Director Shares Capacity interests interests interests interests Shares  (approximate)
REBAL
BEEpg R 5 5 BAEE  RkEE ARUEE  HUEE  ROAH (#4)
Guo Jiang Ordinary Beneficial owner/ 77,765,146 10,784,625 - - 88,549,771 13.43%
family interest (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1)
i LR ERBEEAN/RikER () CiEa)) LiEa))
Guo Fansheng Ordinary Beneficial owner 57,749,015 - - - 57,749,015 8.76%
BALE R EaEEA
Li Jianguang Ordinary Interest of controlled - - 32,000,384 - 32,000,384 4.85%
corporation (Note 2) (Note 2)
Tk ] Rt ZEER GE) GiE?)
Lee Wee Ong Ordinary Beneficial owner 4,600,672 - - - 4,600,672 0.70%
(Note 3) (Note 3)
ERK EalEBA (Btzr3) (B3E3)
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1. Such interests in the Company comprised:

(@) 58,198,771 shares of the Company of which 4,850,625 shares of the
Company are held by Ms. Geng Yi, who is Mr. Guo Jiang's spouse;

(b) 13,917,000 underlying shares derived from the awarded shares
granted to Mr. Guo Jiang under the employees’ share award scheme
adopted on 17th November 2011; and

(©) 16,434,000 underlying shares derived from the share options granted
under the share option scheme adopted on 30th November 2003 of
which 5,934,000 underlying shares derived from the share options
granted to Ms. Geng Yi under the share option scheme.

Mr. Guo is deemed, or taken to have, interested in the shares and
underlying shares held by Ms. Geng Yi pursuant to the SFO.

2. The references to 32,000,384 shares of the Company relate to the same
block of shares of the Company held by Callister Trading Limited, the entire
share capital of which is owned by Mr. Li Jianguang. Accordingly, Mr. Li
Jianguang is deemed, or taken to have, interested in the said 32,000,384
shares of the Company pursuant to the SFO.

3. Such interests in the Company comprises: (i) 1,100,672 Shares, (i) 2,000,000
underlying shares derived from the awarded share granted to Mr. Lee Wee
Ong under the employees’ share award scheme of the Company adopted
by the Board on 17th November 2011 and (iii) 1,500,000 underlying Shares
derived from the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2013, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company at the relevant time
has any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or required to be
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors
as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to written resolutions of the shareholders of the Company dated
30th November 2003, two share option schemes, a pre-IPO share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme"”) and a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) were adopted by the Company.

The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option
Scheme were summarised in the paragraph headed “Share options” under
the section headed Statutory and General Information” in Appendix V of the
prospectus of the Company dated 8th December 2003.

OUTSTANDING SHARE OPTIONS

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
As at 31st December 2013, no options granted pursuant to the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme were outstanding. Details of which were as

B AEsT
BEARRZBRER-BT=4+—A=TAEB
BERUR - ARTRN T WEMBRE S - R
N5 RAR AR AR 8 ([ 2R A BRI R AR M 2T
£))) BAs RS 8 (AR 81)) -

BRDFRA SR B B B 253 E
RARBEHAR-FE=F+-AN\BZBKREREN
BRDEER—ARER | — 80 A | — Bt -

e RATHE 2 B AR 1

(a) ERABBRATMEBE &
RoB—ZF+-A=t+—F  EEREER
DB R R BT 2 B IR R AT

follows: £ - BREFBERIINT
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise As at Granted Exercised Lapsed As at
price per st January during during during 31st December
Name of grantee Date of grant share 2013 the period the period the period 2013
R R®
“E-=% “Z-=%
ARAKRE R A BRITEE —A-B  RABARE  RBATRE RERAR TZA=t+-B
HK$
BT
Ex-employees
BiES
GU Yuanchao 2nd December 2003 0.44 3,771,774 (3,777,714) -
BEES “TE=F+-ACH
Other employees
Hitvg g
In aggregate (Note) 2nd December 2003 0.44 258,242 (38,095) (220,147 -
CEGiE) ZEE-ET”ACZH
Total 4,036,016 (3,815,869) (220,147) -
@5t
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(a)

(b)

(Continued)
Note:

Each option has a 10-year exercise period, which may be exercised after the
expiry of twelve months from the date on which trading in the shares of the
Company first commenced on GEM (the “Listing Date"”), being 17th December
2003. Commencing from the first, second and third anniversaries of the Listing
Date, the relevant grantee may exercise options up to 33.3%, 66.6% and in full,
respectively, of the shares of the Company comprised in his or her option (less
any number of shares of the Company in respect of which the option has been
previously exercised).

Share Option Scheme

As at 31st December 2013, options to subscribe for an aggregate of
40,458,000 shares of the Company granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme were outstanding. Details of which were as follows:

(a)

(b)

(&)
BieE -

BNEREZITERA10E  RAXTRN & RE
RIERESEH(TLEMAR] =TT =4+=A
TR+ ZEAERER TITE - RB LT
Az —  F-_RE-BEF%  BEABRARS
ADRITERB B ZBREMS RZANRRRGZ
33.3%  66.6% &% 100% (FIBR (EAIBE B 1T MR
BFTS RO RBRDEE ) ©

B
R-T—=F+-"A=+—8 - RIEEMNET
B T 0] REE A $£40,458,0000% AN A RIRE 15 2
BERRAE M ARTTE - ARAFHIERIIMT -

Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise As at Granted Exercised Lapsed As at
price  1stJanuary during during during  31st December
Name of grantee Date of grant per share 2013 the period the period the period 2013
R® R®
—E-=F —E-=F
ARAKRE Rt A BRTHE —A-B  REARE  REBRTE RBAXYM +t=R=t-H
HK$ (Note 1)
BT (Bi3E1)
Directors
Bz
Guo lJiang 18th February 2004 24 1,000,000 1,000,000
Eipan ZZTWEZATNH
23rd June 2006 1.49 1,000,000 1,000,000
“EERERAZTEA
11th July 2007 124 2,200,000 2,200,000
e S ) =
29th September 2008 0.604 2,000,000 (500,000) 1,500,000
“ZZN\FAAZTNR
7th April 2010 0.82 4,800,000 4,800,000
—Z-ZEMALHA
Lee Wee Ong 3rd April 2013 4.402 1,500,000 1,500,000
—Z-=EMAZH
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Number of share options

BREHR
Exercise As at Granted Exercised Lapsed As at
price  1stJanuary during during during  31st December
Name of grantee Date of grant per share 2013 the period the period the period 2013
® ®
—E-=F —E-=F
SN < RiAH BRITEE —A-B RBARE  RBATE  RBRAR +t=A=+-H
HK$ (Note 1)
BT (F5E1)
Senior management
BREEAE
Geng Yi 18th February 2004 24 300,000 300,000
i ZETWEZATN\H
23rd June 2006 1.49 434,000 434,000
ZETREAAZTZER
29th September 2008 0.604 1,000,000 1,000,000
ZTTN\FAAZTARA
7th April 2010 0.82 4,200,000 4,200,000
“Z-T5NA+HE
Yang Ning 23rd June 2006 1.49 200,000 (200,000 0
e ~FFAERA-TEA
11th July 2007 1.24 400,000 (400,000) 0
ZETEELATH
29th September 2008 0.604 400,000 (400,000) 0
“ZEZ\FNAZTNE
7th April 2010 0.82 3,000,000 (3,000,000) 0
“Z-ZENALA
Other employees
HflgS
In aggregate (Note 2)  18th February 2004 24 5,043,000 (4,915,000) (32,000) 96,000
At (zE2) “EEWEZATN\H
In aggregate (Note 3)  23rd June 2006 1.49 1,234,000 (824,000) 410,000
Aat(E3) ZETRFAAZTER
In aggregate (Note 4) 11th July 2007 1.24 4,391,000 (1,221,000) 3,170,000
ERAETY ZERHELATH
In aggregate (Note 5) ~ 29th September 2008 0.604 3,800,000 (2,100,000) 1,700,000
A5t (E5) —ZT\FNAZTNE
In aggregate (Note 6) ~ 7th April 2010 0.82 13,350,000 (6,482,000) 6,868,000
ERRGED) “E-ZENALHA
In aggregate (Note 7) ~ 28th March 2011 1.108 2,000,000 (1,670,000) (50,000) 280,000
At (MzE7) “E—%®ZR=-F/\R
In aggregate (Note 8) 18th November 2013 9.84 10,000,000 10,000,000
ait(fizre) “E-=Ft+-AZtN\H
Total 50,752,000 11,500,000  (21,712,000) (82,0000 40,458,000
st
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Notes:

1.

Each option has a 10-year exercise period, which may be exercised after the
expiry of twelve months from the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$2.40 granted on 18th February 2004, the
relevant grantees may exercise options up to 33.3%, 66.6% and in full,
respectively, of the shares of the Company comprised in his or her option
(less any number of shares of the Company in respect of which the option
has been previously exercised), commencing from the first, second and third
anniversaries of the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$1.49 granted on 23rd June 2006, the
relevant grantees may exercise these options in a 10-year period starting
from the expiry of twelve months from the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$1.24 granted on 11th July 2007, the
relevant grantees may exercise options up to 50% and in full, respectively,
of the shares of the Company comprised in his or her option (less any
number of shares of the Company in respect of which the option has been
previously exercised), commencing from the first and second anniversaries
of the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$0.604 granted on 29th September 2008,
the relevant grantees may exercise these options in a 10-year period starting
from the expiry of twelve months from the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$0.82 granted on 7th April 2010, the
relevant grantees may exercise options up to 50% and 100%, respectively,
of the shares of the Company comprised in his or her option (less any
number of shares of the Company in respect of which the option has been
previously exercised), commencing from the first and second anniversaries
of the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$1.108 granted on 28th March 2011, the
relevant grantees may exercise options up to 50% and 100%, respectively,
of the shares of the Company comprised in his or her option (less any
number of shares of the Company in respect of which the option has been
previously exercised), commencing from the first and second anniversaries
of the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$4.402 granted on 3rd April 2013, the
relevant grantee may exercise options up to 20%, 40%, 60%, 80% and
100%, of the shares of the Company comprised in his option (less any
number of shares of the Company in respect of which the option has been
previously exercised), commencing from the first, second, third, fourth and
fifth anniversaries of the date of the grant of options respectively.
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For the options exercisable at HK$9.84 granted on 18th November 2013,
the relevant grantees may exercise options up to 10%, 20%, 40%, 70%
and 100%, respectively, of the shares of the Company comprised in his
or her option (less any number of shares of the Company in respect of
which the option has been previously exercised), commencing from the
first, second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the date of the grant of
options.

3 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme
to acquire an aggregate of 96,000 shares of the Company at HK$2.40 per
share.

5 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme to
acquire an aggregate of 410,000 shares of the Company at HK$1.49 per
share.

12 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme
to acquire an aggregate of 317,000 shares of the Company at HK$1.24 per
share.

4 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme to
acquire an aggregate of 1,700,000 shares of the Company at HK$0.604 per
share.

8 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme to
acquire an aggregate of 6,868,000 shares of the Company at HK$0.82 per
share.

4 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme to
acquire an aggregate of 280,000 shares of the Company at HK$1.108 per
share.

56 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme
to acquire an aggregate of 10,000,000 shares of the Company at HK$9.84
per share.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 18th
February 2004, determined using the Binomial Model value model, was
approximately RMB20,193,000. The significant inputs into the model were
the exercise price of HK$2.4, standard deviation of expected share price
returns of 32%, expected life of options ranging from 5.4 to 6.6 years,
expected dividend paid out rate of 0% and annual risk-free interest rate
ranging from 1.34% to 4.43%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis
of historical price movement of the Company and other comparable
companies with similar business nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 23rd
June 2006, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was
approximately RMB3,919,000. The significant inputs into the model were
exercise price of HK$1.49, standard deviation of expected share price
returns of 34.8%, expected life of options ranging from 3.2 to 5.5 years
expected dividend paid out rate of 0% and annual risk free interest rate of
4.911%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share
price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical price movement
of the Company and other comparable companies with similar business
nature.
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The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 11th
July 2007, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was
approximately RMB9,390,000. The significant inputs into the model were
exercise price of HK$1.24 standard deviation of expected share price returns
of 49.0%, expected life of options ranging from 2.4 to 6.2 years expected
dividend paid out rate of 0% and annual risk-free interest rate of 4.757%.
The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share price
returns is based on statistical analysis of historical price movement of the
Company and other comparable companies with similar business nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 29th
September 2008, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model,
was approximately RMB2,756,000. The significant inputs into the model
were exercise price of HK$0.604 standard deviation of expected share price
returns of 72.2%, expected life of options ranging from 3.8 to 4.8 years
expected dividend paid out rate of 0% and annual risk-free interest rate of
3.133%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share
price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical price movement
of the Company and other comparable companies with similar business
nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 7th
April 2010, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was
approximately RMB12,527,000. The significant inputs into the model were
exercise price of HK$0.82 standard deviation of expected share price returns
of 79.8%, expected life of options ranging from 3.4 to 5.9 years expected
dividend paid out rate of 0% and annual risk-free interest rate of 2.865%.
The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share price
returns is based on statistical analysis of historical price movement of the
Company and other comparable companies with similar business nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 28th
March 2011, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was
approximately RMB1,377,000. The significant inputs into the model were
exercise price of HK$1.108 standard deviation of expected share price
returns of 77.4%, expected life of options ranging from 3.8 to 4.9 years
expected dividend paid out rate of 0% and annual risk-free interest rate
2.82%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share
price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical price movement
of the Company and other comparable companies with similar business
nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 3rd
April 2013, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was
approximately RMB3,754,000. The significant inputs into the model were
exercise price of HK$4.402 standard deviation of expected share price
returns of 75%, expected life of options ranging from 9.1 to 9.6 years
expected dividend paid out rate of 0% and annual risk-free interest rate
1.111%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share
price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical price movement
of the Company and other comparable companies with similar business
nature.
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16 . The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 18th
November 2013, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model,
was approximately RMB50,125,000. The significant inputs into the model
were exercise price of HK$9.84 standard deviation of expected share price
returns of 71.5%, expected life of options ranging from 4.7 to 7.9 years
expected dividend paid out rate of 0% and annual risk-free interest rate
1.915%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share
price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical price movement
of the Company and other comparable companies with similar business
nature.

17. In the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 13th
May 2011, an ordinary resolution was passed by the shareholders of
the Company to refresh the scheme mandate limit under the Share
Option Scheme. For details, please refer to the Company’s circular and
announcement dated 24th April 2011 and 13th May 2011 respectively.

18. In respect of employees resigned during the period whose share options
have not been vested, such share options are lapsed, and the share
compensation costs recognised previously are credited to condensed
consolidated final statement of comprehensive income.

19.  The values of share options recognised in share-based compensation
reserves are subject to a number of assumptions and with regard to the
limitation of the valuation model.

20. The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the
date on which these options were exercised was approximately HK$6.1688
per share.

EMPLOYEES' SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 17th November 2011, the Board adopted an employees’ share award
scheme pursuant to which existing shares of the Company will be acquired
by the trustee from the market at the cost of the Company and be held in
trust for the selected employees until such shares are vested with the relevant
selected employees in accordance with the provision of the share award
scheme. For principal terms of the employees’ share award scheme, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 17th November 2011.
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Since the adoption date, a total of 46,881,000 shares has been granted up to
the date of this report, representing approximately 7.08% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at date of this report. The awarded shares remain

BERMBHEEAREBE - & HA ££46,881,000
B  HERAREAHPART D HITHRALY
7.08% c RZE—Z=F+-RA=+—H HABBZ

outstanding as at 31st December 2013 are set out below: EERHIT
Number of As at As at
awarded 1st January Granted during  Vested during  31st December
Name of grantee Date of grant shares 2013 the period the period 2013
R® ®
—E-=& —E-=F
ARARE R A ERROEE —B—H B Bn%E +=B=+-8H
Directors
=
Guo Jiang 20th August 2012 16,700,000 16,700,000 (2,783,000) 13,917,000
Cipa —Z-—/\A=+H
Lee Wee Ong 14th June 2012 3,000,000 3,000,000 (1,000,000) 2,000,000
S N =
Senior management
SHREBAR
Yang Ning (Note 1) 23rd November 2011 3,000,000 3,000,000 (790,000) 2,210,000
HEMEE) “E—%+—-A-+=R
Other employees
HitES
In aggregate (Note 2) ~ 23rd November 2011 21,181,000 20,336,337 (2,407,002) 17,929,335
Ast(HE2) “B——%+—-AZ+=H
Total 43,881,000 43,036,337 (6,980,002) 36,056,335
st
Note: Mz -

1 After 2013 and on 17th January 2014, Mr. Yang Ning was granted 3,000,000
awarded shares. Please also referred to the announcement of the Company dated
17th January 2014 for further details.

2 71 employees have been granted an aggregate of 21,181,000 awarded shares.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31st December 2013, the interest of persons (not being a Director or
chief executive of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or required to be entered
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

FERRREMALRERTRMD R
HERG 2 ERRAR

RZZE—=F+=ZA=+—8 ' REAQEkH KIEH
R HEARBEES RAEKROIEXVBHE2RES
DEEMSANRRIBERZAT  WRBEREES MBS

&HIE336MGBARARIFEN SRz #ERm 2 AT

f
(W FEERRARDRTHRAER) T

Approximate
percentage of

shareholding
Nature of as at
short 31st December
Name of shareholder Class of shares Long position position Capacity 2013
R-B—=F
+=A=+—H
ZBRARELH
BREREEEERB RG5! HA KEME F15 Ekigzd
Digital China Holdings Limited  Ordinary 137,758,107 Interest in controlled 20.89%
FN BB IR B IR A 7 Limk (Note 1) corporation
(M7E1) Rt EEER
Geng Yi Ordinary 88,549,771 Beneficial owner and 13.43%
Bkta B (Note 2) family interest
(M$3E2) BEmEa ARK xR
Kent C. McCarthy Ordinary 85,457,000 Interest in controlled 12.96%
TimAR (Note 3) corporation
(fF3E3) R EEER
Notes: Bt

1 The references to 137,758,107 shares of the Company held by the Talent Gain
Developments Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Digital China (BVI) Limited,
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Digital China Holdings Limited.

2 Such interest in the Company comprises: (a) 58,198,771 shares of the Company
of which 53,348,146 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Guo Jiang, who is Ms.
Geng Yi's spouse; (b) 13,917,000 underlying shares derived from the awarded
shares granted to Mr. Guo Jiang under the employees’ share award scheme
adopted on 17th November 2011; and (c) 16,434,000 underlying shares derived
from the share options granted under the share option scheme adopted on 30th
November 2003 of which 10,500,000 underlying shares derived from the share
options granted to Mr. Guo Jiang under the share option scheme.

Ms. Geng is deemed, or taken to have, interested in the shares and underlying
shares held by Mr. Guo Jiang pursuant to the SFO.

1. 7% 137,758,107 fx 7~ & &) i 13 £ Digital China (BVI)
Limited (BN ETFIERAR AR 2 EMBRAR)2E
¥} & A Al Talent Gain Developments Limited i °

2. ZERAQRRIZEZEIE  (a) 58,198,771 AR EIIL
1 © HA53,348, 146 R AN R AR D R X+ 2 BB
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The reference to 85,457,000 shares of the Company comprises 71,006,296 shares
of the Company, 4,470,704 shares of the Company and 9,980,000 shares of the
Company held by Jayhawk Private Equity Fund, L.P., Jayhawk Private Equity Co-
Invest Fund, L.P. and JHAB Fund II, LLC, respectively. The entire issued share capital
of each of the above mentioned entities is owned by Mr. Kent C. McCarthy.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Certain related party transactions entered into by the Group, as disclosed in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, also constitute connected
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules (as amended from time to time),
and are required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

The following transactions between certain connected persons (as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into and/or ongoing
for which relevant disclosure if necessary and had been made by the Company
in accordance with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

ESTABLISHMENT OF A JOINT VENTURE
COMPANY IN CHONGQING

On 4th December 2013, the Company and Digital China Holdings
Limited (“Digital China”) entered into the joint venture agreement
(the “Chongging JV Agreement”), pursuant to which the parties (or its
nominee subsidiary) agreed to, among other things, establish Chongging
Digital China Huicong Micro-Credit Co., Ltd. (EE S/ S5 E 18/ 58
B# AR AR (the “Chongging JV Company”), which will be owned
as to 60% by Digital China and as to 40% by the Company (or their
respective nominee subsidiaries) for the purpose of the development and
operation of the micro-credit internet financing business.

Pursuant to the Chongqing JV Agreement, the total registered capital
of the Chongging JV Company shall be RMB1,000,000,000, of which
RMB600,000,000 will be contributed by Digital China in cash and
RMB400,000,000 will be contributed by the Company in cash.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Chongging JV Agreement exceed 25% but
are less than 100%, the entering into of the Chongqing JV Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder constitutes a major
transaction for the Company under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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In addition, as Digital China is a substantial shareholder of the Company
interested in approximately 20.96% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the Chongging JV Agreement, Digital China is
a connected person of the Company. The entering into the Chongging
JV Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder therefore
also constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules and is subject to, among other things,
the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The entering into of the Chongqing JV
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder was approved
by independent shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 9th January 2014.

Please also refer to the announcements of the Company dated 4th
December 2013 and 9th January 2014, and the circular of the Company
dated 20th December 2013.

ESTABLISHMENT OF HUI DE HOLDINGS CO.,
LTD.

On 9th December 2013, Tianjin HC (a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group), Tianjin Lekun Enterprise Management and Consultancy
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (K ;2 %4 i P X2 B B F A4 B
™ Z(F B A 1)) ("Tianjin Lekun"), and Beijing Zhong Ding Bo Rui
Investment Management Co., Ltd. dt R R ERKREE R AR A 7))
(“Zhongding Borui”) entered into the a joint venture agreement (“Huide
JV Agreement”), pursuant to which the parties agreed to, among other
things, establish Hui De Holding Co., Ltd. (Z &= & B R 2 7) ("Hui
De Company”). Hui De Company will be owned as to 20% by Tianjin
HC, as to 40% by Tianjin Lekun and as to 40% by Zhongding Borui.

Beijing Lepeng is a substantial shareholder of Tianjin HC holding 40%
of its equity interest as at the date of the Huide JV Agreement, and thus
a connected person of the Company, and it is the general partner of
Tianjin Lekun responsible for implementation of the partnership affairs.
Tianjin Lekun, being an associate of Beijing Lepeng, is a connected
person of the Group. As Zhongding Borui is controlled by Mr. Guo Wei,
a non-executive Director, Zhongding Borui is a connected person of
the Company. As such, the entering into of the Huide JV Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute a connected
transaction of the Company pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios for the Huide JV Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder are below 5%, the Huide
JV Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder is subject
to, among other things, reporting and announcement requirements,
but is exempted from independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Please also refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 9th December 2013.
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eport of the Directors

Save as disclosed above, all the related party transactions, as disclosed
in note 37 to the consolidated financial statement, did not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules which are required
to comply with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the GEM Listing Rules. In
particular, the transactions under categories (a) and (b) in note 37 were
conducted on normal commercial terms where all of the percentage
ratios (other than the profit ratio) were less than 5% and the total
annual consideration was less than HK$1,000,000, while those under
category (c) in note 37 were provided under the service contracts of
relevant management.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the respective percentages of purchases attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers and the sales attributable to the Group's five
largest customers combined was less than 30% of the total value of the
Group's purchases and sales.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors, their associates
or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company established an
audit committee on 24th July 2003 with written terms of reference based on
the guidelines set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” published
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and internal control procedures of the Group. The
audit committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Zhang Ke and Mr. Xiang Bing and a non-executive Director, Mr. Li Jianguang.
Mr. Zhang Ke is the Chairman of the audit committee.

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with management of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, the
internal control procedures, the annual results of the Company for the year
ended 31st December 2013 and has met with external auditors and discussed
the financial matters of the Group that arose during the course of audit for
the year ended 31st December 2013. The audit committee held 4 meetings
during the year.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors consider that the Company had complied with the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules throughout the reporting period.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Each of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) has confirmed that none of them had any business or interest
in any company that materially competes or may compete with the business
of the Group or any other conflict of interests with the interests of the Group
during the year ended 31st December 2013.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a written confirmation or an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
Company considers the independent non-executive Directors are or have been
remained independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
of the Company, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the
Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
Pursuant to the employees’ share award scheme adopted in November 2011,
trustee purchased an aggregate of 18,456,000 shares as awarded shares
during the year ended 31st December 2013. Neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the shares of the
Company during the year ended 31st December 2013.

AMOUNT OF CAPITALISED INTEREST

Save as disclosed in this report, no interest has been capitalised by the Group
during the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board
HC International, Inc.
Guo Jiang
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Beijing, PRC, 18th March 2014
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INTRODUCTION

Maintaining high standards of business ethics and corporate governance
practices has always been one of the Company’s goals. This corporate
governance report describes its corporate governance practices, explains the
applications of the principles of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Code") and deviations, if any.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied no more or less with the provisions of the
Code. The Company believes that by achieving high standard of corporate
governance, the corporate value and accountability of the Company can
be enhanced and the shareholders’ interests can be maximised. The Board
has continued to monitor and review the Company’s progress in respect of
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance. Meetings were held
throughout the year and where appropriate, circulars and other guidance
notes were issued to the Directors and senior management of the Company
to ensure awareness to issues regarding corporate governance practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
set out in code provision D 3.1 of the Code. As at the date of this report, the
Board has reviewed and monitored: (a) the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, (b) training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, (c) the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, (d) the Company’s
code of conduct and (e) the Company’s compliance with the Code disclosures
requirements.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted written guidelines regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms not less than the required standard of dealings as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules on 20th March 2006.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have complied
with such code of conduct and the required standard of dealings and its code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors throughout the year
ended 31st December 2013.

On 20th March 2006, the Board also adopted written guidelines on terms not
less than the required standard of dealings for relevant employees in respect
of their dealings in the securities of the Company. Prior to the adoption
of such an internal code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
employees, relevant employees who had in their possession of price-sensitive
information were formally briefed on the dealing restrictions in relation to
the securities of the Company at management meetings during the reporting
period.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine Directors, of whom
four are executive Directors, two are non-executive Directors and three are
independent non-executive Directors. The participation of non-executive
Directors in the Board provides the Company with a wide range of expertise
and experience, and plays an important role in the work of the Board and
brings independent judgement on issues relating to the Company’s strategy,
performance, conflicts of interest and management process to ensure that
the interests of all shareholders of the Company have been duly considered.
All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the
position so as to carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently.

In full compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors, at least
one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence, and the Company considers such Directors to be independent
in accordance with each and every guideline set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Code, the Board adopted a board diversity policy. The
Company recognise the benefits of diversity of Board members, and will
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experiences and diversity of
prospect appropriate to the Company’s business need prospectus.

The Board as at 31st December 2013 comprised:

Executive Directors
Guo Fansheng (Chairman), Guo Jiang (Chief Executive Officer), Lee Wee Ong
(Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Li Jianguang, Guo Wei

Independent non-executive Directors
Zhang Ke, Xiang Bing, Zhang Tim Tianwei

Except that Mr. Guo Fansheng (Chairman) is the uncle of Mr. Guo Jiang
(Chief Executive Officer), there are no financial, business, family or other
relationships among the members of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors.
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Board meetings and general meetings

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means of
communication at least four times every year. At least 14 days’ notice of
all board meetings were given to all Directors (unless waived in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company), who were all given an
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for discussion. The Board
secretary of the Company (the “Board Secretary”) assists the Chairman in
preparing the agenda for the meeting, and ensures that all applicable rules
and regulations regarding the meetings are observed. The meeting agenda
and accompanying board papers are sent to all Directors prior to meetings.
During the financial year ended 31st December 2013, 14 Board meetings and
2 general meetings were held and the following is an attendance record of
the meetings by each Director:

EZgeBRRRAE

EX0eRBFEMERELINR - EZURIFHF
HEBEMETEATASE - ZEEFED14K
AR EHEES SR RERM(ERESRAA T IA
HeERIN)  ZREFHERIRBBNERIIA
GaaiE o AR zERgNE((EFEWE DB
TRAGHREERE  URRETHAEREHERNE
RRATARG - GXFRREEEA IR GHE
TREREHES - ﬁﬁ_%*:iJr_H:wL*El
IFMEBRFE - HBRTUAEEFERMNABERAE
& BREFENHELENT

Attendance HE
Board General Exg [
Meetings Meetings = =E

Note 3 HiEt3
Executive Directors BITER
Guo Fansheng 12/13 172 #HAAE 1213 12
Guo Jiang 13/13 2/2 1 13/13 2/2
Lee Wee Ong 13/13 2/2  LleeWeeOng 13/13 2/2
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Li Jianguang 13/14 12 ZEX 13/14 12
Guo Wei 11/12 02 5 11712 0/2
Independent non-executive Directors BYkHTES
Zhang Ke 13/14 172 Rx 13/14 172
Xiang Bing 8/14 02 EE 8/14 0/2
Zhang Tim Tianwei 12/14 02 RXE 12114 0/2
Notes: &t
(1) Two general meetings of the Company were held during the financial year ended (1) ZARBREZE-_ZT—=FT_A=T—HILHEFE

31st December 2013; BITMRRRAE ©

(2)  Non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) have
been invited by the Company but some of them were unable to attend the all
general meetings held during the year due to other engagements. The non-
executive Directors actively participates in the Board and will attend the general
meetings of the Company if possible.

(3)  Excluding Board meeting at which relevant Director is required to abstain pursuant
to the GEM Listing Rules and/or the Articles of Association of the Company.

During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss and formulate the
overall strategies of the Company, monitor financial performances and discuss
the annual and interim results, set annual budgets, as well as discuss and
decide on other significant matters.
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The Board Secretary records the proceedings of each Board meeting in detail
by keeping detailed minutes, including all decisions made by the Board
together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if any). Drafts
of board minutes are circulated to all Directors for comments and approval
as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on request by any Director. All Directors have access
to relevant and timely information at all times as the Chairman ensures that
management will supply the Board and its committees with all relevant
information in a timely manner.

Delegation by the board

The Company has set out the respective functions and responsibilities reserved
to the Board and those delegated to management. The Board delegates day-
to-day operations of the Group to executive Directors and senior management
while reserving certain key matters for its approval. The Board is responsible
for the approval and monitoring of the Company’s overall strategies and
policies; approval of business plans; evaluating the performance of the
Company and oversight of management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by directing and supervising
the Company'’s affairs.

Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management through
executive Directors who have attended at board meetings.

INDUCTION AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed Directors will receive guideline and reference materials to
enable them to familiarize with the Group’s business operations and the
Board'’s polices.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
has circulated to Directors training materials relevant to the directors duties
and responsibilities and prepared a training record and the Directors have
reviewed the training materials.
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During the reporting period, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending training course or reading relevant
materials on the topics related to corporate governance and regulations, and
the individual training record is summaries below:

Attending seminar(s) /

RAREHRE  2RESCERHFET

IFRIZHBIE
TREMCKERNERAR B2 EEEEE
R - MERE RSN T

Name of Directors relevant materials EEHR HEER AHER
Executive Director HITES

Guo Fansheng Yes R4 &
Guo Jiang Yes EIan =
Lee Wee Ong Yes Lee Wee Ong =
Non-executive Directors FHTES

Li Guanguang Yes FEK =
Guo Wei Yes ELys) &
Independent non-executive Directors BAFHITES

Zhang Ke Yes R =
Xiang Bing Yes TE b=
Zhang Tim Tianwei Yes RAE b=
Term of Appointment and Re-election {EHRERE

Under the provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of the existing non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Li Jianguang, Mr. Guo Wei, Mr. Zhang Ke, Dr. Xiang
Bing, and Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei was appointed for a fixed term of one year,
subject to rotation and/or re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company, as specified by the Articles of Association of the Company. Under
the provision A.4.2, all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment and every director, including those appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

On 10th November 2006, a special resolution was passed by the shareholders
of the Company to approve the amendments to the Company’s Articles of
Association to ensure compliance with the Code. Pursuant to the amended
provisions of the Articles of Associations of the Company, any Director
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of
an addition to the Board), and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To improve transparency and independency, the roles of the Chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company are segregated and are not
exercised by the same individual.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board functions effectively
and smoothly. In doing so, the Chairman ensures that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established and followed, and that
all Directors are properly briefed and received all relevant information prior to
each meeting.

Mr. Guo Fansheng, who assumes the role of the Chairman, is responsible
for overseeing the implementation of corporate strategies of the Company.
Mr. Guo Jiang, who assumes the role of the chief executive officer of the
Company, is responsible for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the
Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration Committee”)
was established on 20th March 2006. As at 31st December 2013, the
chairman of the committee is Mr. Zhang Ke (independent non-executive
Director) and other members include Mr. Guo Jiang (executive Director), Mr.
Guo Wei (non-executive Director), Dr. Xiang Bing (independent non-executive
Director) and Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei (independent non-executive Director).

During the year, the Remuneration Committee was responsible for
formulating and recommending the Board in relation to the remuneration
policy, determining the remunerations of executive Directors and members
of the senior management of the Company, and reviewing and making
recommendations on the Company'’s share option scheme and share award
scheme, bonus structure, provident fund and other compensation-related
issues. The Remuneration Committee consults with the Chairman and/or the
chief executive officer of the Company on its proposals and recommendations.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with other resources enabling
it to discharge its duties such as the access to professional advice if and
when necessary. For the financial year ended 31st December 2013, the
Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings. The individual attendance record
of each member is as follows:

EIFRITHRAR
BREAAE KBTI - ARTERRTHARBG
815 W 3FeR A~ ASEE ©

ERARRREFS TR RIERIE - EHTEL
RRAATSIE AT RTNL LSRR AR
RRREBETRNSRE R ERL T — ) AHE
¥

BAEFEEERARRLRE  AEEERARMER
BE B o SOTREREARBTHAZES - 88
EEARAZARER -

FWESE
ARARFMEER((FHZEGE N _ZTRF=A
ZHAKY KRB =FF A=t —H ®RE
EBUINTER)EFZEG LR HOKEBE
BTREGTES) BREECERITESR)  BE
B OB FMITES) RRREEEBEY B3R
TES) -

FA - HE B A B HEH B R B
EXRLEE  EEARRRTEERIREEA
B2 - ARSI AR E 2 B RT B St 42
8l DALES  ATESEAMEARE 2 EELHR
BHREER - HiE B et s R B R
ARBERR/ FITHREHZER -

FMZ S B RHEINERUBITERE - 2F LS
ERHASEER HE-_T—=F+-A=1+—~H
IFHBFEE  FMEZEeBRMAeE  ZEE%
PR EH RS T

Members Attendance KB HERE
Zhang Ke 22 KRR 2/2
Guo Jiang 212 3BT 2/2
Guo Wei 22 HAE 2/2
Xiang Bing 12 TEE 12
Zhang Tim Tianwei 22 RKE 2/2
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Full minutes of the Remuneration Committee’s meetings are properly
kept by the Company. In line with practices consistent with meetings
of the Board and other committee meetings, draft and final versions of
Remuneration Committee meeting minutes are circulated to all members of
the Remuneration Committee for comments, approval and record as soon as
practicable after each meeting.

At the meetings of the Remuneration Committee held in the period under
review, the members of the Remuneration Committee have reviewed the
Group's remuneration policy and discussed the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management for the forthcoming financial year.

The emoluments of the Directors and the management are determined
based on the operating results of the Company, individual performance and/
or prevailing market conditions. The Company has also adopted the Share
Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme as an incentive to Directors and
senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

With effect from 20th March 2012, the Company established the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and written
terms of reference of the nomination committee have been adopted. As at
the date of this report, the chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr.
Guo Fansheng (executive Director) and other members include Mr. Zhang Ke
(independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei (independent
non-executive Director). The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing the structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board,
identifying individual suitably qualified to become Board members, selecting or
making recommendation to the Board on selection of individuals nominated
for directorship, assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Director and making recommendation to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors. During the
year, the Nomination Committee also reviewed the structure and composition
of the Board.

New Directors are selected on the basis of their qualifications, skills and
experience which the Nomination Committee considers will make a positive
contribution to the performance of the Board.

In August 2013, in order to comply with the amendments to the GEM
Listing Rules in relation to the diversity of the Board, amendments to the
written terms of reference of the nomination committee have been adopted.
In deciding the composition of the Board, the Company will consider the
Board diversity from various perspectives, including but not limited to sex,
age, cultural and academic background, race, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and terms of services.
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For the financial year ended 31st December 2013, the Nomination Committee #HE-Z—=F+-_A=+—HILFE ' EELE®
held 1 meeting. The Individual attendance record of each members is as ~ BE8T— X &% - SKEHESHABNT ¢

follows:

Members Attendance & R B
Guo Fansheng 1717 FRAE 11
Zhang Ke AN 37 11
Zhang Tim Tianwei 171 RRERAE 11

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Management of the Company provides all relevant information and records to
the Board enabling the Board to make assessment and to prepare the financial
statements and other financial disclosures. In full compliance with Rule 5.28
and 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules, the audit committee of the Company
("Audit Committee”) was established in July 2003 and is currently chaired by
Mr. Zhang Ke, (independent non-executive Director). Other members of the
Audit Committee include Mr. Li Jianguag (non-executive Director) and Mr.
Xiang Bing (independent non-executive Director).

During the year, the Audit Committee’s primary duties include ensuring the
Company’s financial statements, annual and interim reports, and the auditor’s
report present a true and balanced assessment of the Company’s financial
position; reviewing the Company’s financial control, internal control and risk
management systems; and reviewing the Company'’s financial and accounting
policies and practices.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties. For the financial year ended 31st December 2013, the
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Audit Committee held 4 meetings. The individual attendance record of each ”Eﬁﬂma o ZEEEKEMNEEZENT
member is as follows:

Members Attendance B HERE
Zhang Ke 4/4 R 4/4
Xiang Bing 174 IEE 1/4
Li Jianguang 414 FgE¥ 4/4

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management of the Company the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, the internal control
procedures, the financial results of the Group during the year ended 31st
December 2013 and met with external auditors and discussed the financial
matters of the Group that arose during the course of audit during the year
ended 31st December 2013. In the opinion of the Audit Committee, there
are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cost
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. There is
no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection, appointment, resignation or discussion of the external auditors.
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Full minutes of all Audit Committee meetings are properly kept by the
Company. In line with practices consistent with meetings of the Board and
other committee meetings, draft and final versions of Audit Committee
meeting minutes are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee for
comments, approval and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

The Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements and the
responsibilities of the external auditors to the shareholders are set out on
pages 53 to 54 of this report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit function performed by
external auditors, including whether such non-audit functions could lead to
any potential material adverse effect on the Company. The Group’s external
auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers. The remuneration paid or payable to the
external auditor of the Group during the Reporting Period comprised fees
for audit services of HKD2,480,000 (2012: HKD2,480,000). There was no
non-audit service provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers during the Reporting
Period.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider to provide company
secretarial services and Ms. Kwong Yin Ping Yvonne is appointed as the
Company Secretary. The primary contact person in the Company for Ms.
Kwong in relation to corporate secretarial matters is Mr. Lu Qingguo, the
Board Secretary and the General Counsel of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

Senior management remuneration by band
The emoluments fell within the following bands:

RARARERRFEGZZR G 2 B ERLE - REE
ZENAEMZEESHR BN ERZESGHLH
EREEZERESREARRNERATER TER
EXERHMNEZEENBERN  IMEREER - #E
Kaosz A -

BEHMBRERZET  URINEZBMERR &
ERNAIREESIE54E ©

B Em Hr A
EZZECEEZEINEZEAMNZ A REEINEZ
HEMETNI IS T E - BIEERIERS T e
AR RIERTBIEER L - KR R)INE
ZHENBETROKBSFTRI BT - RBREHM - B
ek AN SR EIMNE X B AT BN € BB BURTE E B
2,480,000/ 7L ( —Z— —4F : 2,480,000/ 7T) ° Nk
LHIR - BEFGE ST ST B IR A IERR
HRTS ©

DEWE

ARB RS BIRGH R IR A R E IR - B2
FRTERERATNE - AABERL Tz T RS
BATAARREESEWEREFDEEFHEERSL
o

Nil to HKD 1,000,000
Z£%1,000,000/ 7T

HKD 1,000,000 to HKD2,000,000
1,000,000/ 7T % 2,000,000/ 7T
HKD2,000,000 to HKD3,000,000
2,000,000/ 7T.% 3,000,000/ 7T
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal control
systems for the Group to safeguard the Company’s assets and shareholders’
interests, as well as for reviewing such systems’ effectiveness. The Board
conducts review of the Company’s internal control systems periodically,
covering financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. In such review, the Board has considered factors such as changes
since the last review; scope and quality of management’s monitoring of
risks; incidence of significant control failings and weaknesses identified; and
effectiveness relating to financial reporting and compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company discloses all necessary information to the shareholders in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The Directors host the annual general
meeting each year to meet the shareholders of the Company and answer
their enquiries (if any). The Directors make efforts to attend annual general
meetings so that they may answer any question raised by the shareholders of
the Company.

The proceedings of the annual general meetings are reviewed from time
to time to ensure the Company conforms to the best practices regarding
corporate governance.

The Company also communicates with its shareholders through its annual,
interim and quarterly reports. The directors, company secretary or other
appropriate members of senior management also respond to inquiries from
shareholders and investors promptly.

A Shareholders communication policy was reviewed and updated on 20th
March 2012 to comply with code provision E.1.4 of the Code.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
in writing through the Investor Relations Department of the Company whose
contact details are as follows:

Tower B, Jingyi Technical Building
No.9 Dazhongsi East Road
Haidian District

Beijing 100098

The People’s Republic of China
Email: ir@hcgroup.com

Tel No: (8610) 6229 8811

Fax No: (8610) 6229 8808
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Investor Relations Department of the Company handles both telephone and
written enquiries from Shareholders from time to time.

Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns will be forwarded to the Board and/or
relevant Board Committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer
the Shareholders’ questions.

Procedures for putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, the Board may whenever
it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association, no person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general meeting
unless a Notice signed by a Member (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election and also a Notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the Registration Office provided that the
minimum length of the period, during which such Notice(s) are given, shall
be at least seven (7) days and that the period for lodgement of such Notice(s)
shall commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7)
days prior to the date of such general meeting.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director
is posted on the Company’s website at http://www.hcgroup.com.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HC INTERNATIONAL, INC.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HC International,
Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out
on pages 55 to 140, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31st December 2013, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st December
2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18th March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Rt =R

For the year ended 31st December 2013 BZ—ZF—

=FE+ZA=T—HIEE

2013 2012
—_E—= —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Miat AR%T T ARBFIT
Revenue SHEKA 5 837,721 548,568
Cost of revenue HE AR 27 (68,203) (68,684)
Gross profit ES| 769,518 479,884
Other income E A A 26 3,473 3,307
Selling and marketing expenses HERTSHEEZER 27 (482,289) (318,314)
Administrative expenses TEHER 27 (120,791) (97,742)
Operating profit Sl 169,911 67,135
Finance income BE YA 29 16,555 11,807
Finance cost LSS I 29 (340) (615)
Profit before income tax R PR35 Al A 186,126 78,327
Income tax expense FriS i sz 30 (34,592) (12,905)
Profit for the year REE R 151,534 65,422
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: H i 2 (E18), WA
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to HnftmoEsBmrIER
profit or loss
Currency translation difference EREHER (2,692) 37
Total comprehensive income for the year, AEZEEHEBALE
net of tax Mk FiIE 148,842 65,459
Profit attributable to: T ATFEMR SR :
Equity holders of the Company RAFIEZIZAA 153,326 66,724
Non-controlling interests PR R (1,792) (1,302)
151,534 65,422
Total comprehensive income attributable to: THALTEAEZEKEALEE :
Equity holders of the Company RARE=FEA 150,634 66,761
Non-controlling interests P I i = (1,792) (1,302)
148,842 65,459
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

B ptR e W

For the year ended 31st December 2013 BEZE-F—=F+-A=1T—HIFE

Note 2012
fizE e
Earnings per share attributable to the equity AARERFE ABML
holders of the Company (expressed in RMB FBREFASRARE
per share) E)
Basic earnings per share FREAREF 32 0.2634 0.1204
Diluted earnings per share GBS AT 32 0.2489 0.1133

The notes on pages 62 to 140 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

FO2E V40BN ARG MM IEHRERNEEI S -

Dividends

2013 2012

—_E—= —T——F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR¥T T AREBT T
33 - -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

s

As at 31st December 2013 R=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= —E—=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Miat AR¥T T ARBFIT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Land use rights TR FARE 6 185,619 17,298
Intangible assets B A E 7 5 9
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MR E 8 214,586 207,915
Deferred income tax assets RIS EE 24 3,208 4,373
Long term deposits, prepayments and other RER®  BNFIER
receivables H it eI IR 13 77,905 54,510
Investment in an associate REE R R 2 & 12 20,000 =
Investment properties LAY 9 39,518 =
Properties under development BRAPYE 10 208,268 =
749,109 284,105
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables FEURBR R 13 11,421 19,168
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e AAREREAERGIE 13 33,188 42,668
Direct selling costs HEHEKA 14 136,353 85,102
Amount due from a related company ek BB N B FOE 15 1,622 1,604
Cash and cash equivalents ﬁi&ﬁiwfﬁ% 16 1,025,089 422,552
1,207,673 571,094
Total assets HWEE 1,956,782 855,199
Equity Em
Equity attributable to the Company’s RATIRERITE ABEGRER
equity holders
Share capital A% A 18 65,865 58,167
Other reserves Hih 19 666,239 275,769
Retained earnings BIFWE 165,174 11,848
897,278 345,784
Non-controlling interests RS 113,196 96,908
Total equity B 1,010,474 442,692
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

aHEERER

As at 31st December 2013 RZ=ZZE—=F+=-HA=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= —F——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE ARET T ARET T
Liabilities =t
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities EEERAaE 24 14,009 10,260
Non-current portion of finance lease obligation  gW&FEFF 2 IERBIEH 21 1,323 2,491
Deferred government grants LT ERD 17 206,300 =
Bank borrowings RITEE 23 24,838 -
Non-current portion of borrowings JERNHAE &S 23 77,649 -
324,119 12,751
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade payables e BR 3R 22 2,622 2,825
Accrued expenses and other payables FEEHE A R H i FET IR 22 64,643 33,663
Current portion of borrowings BNERfE EEB 5 23 11,184 =
Current portion of finance lease obligation MERESE 2RI D 21 759 1,671
Deferred revenue EEUWA 22 502,734 337,417
Other taxes payable H b e FiIE 25 17,811 8,366
Income tax payable FESIFTISHL 25 22,436 15,814
622,189 399,756
Total liabilities FCS =R 946,308 412,507
Total equity and liabilities SN BE 1,956,782 855,199
Net current assets mEEEFRE 585,484 171,338
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREAE 1,334,593 455,443

The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 140 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 18th March 2014 and were signed on its behalf.

GUO Jiang
Director
T
EF

The notes on pages 62 to 140 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Balance Sheet
BEAE

As at 31st December 2013 RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H

2013 2012
—EB—=F —E—CF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR¥T T AREET T
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR Z&E 11 1,956 1,956
1,956 1,956
Current assets RBEE
Loan to a subsidiary ERTHBAR 11 572,050 227,079
Other receivables H b e Uk R IE 13 178 184
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEY 16 5 5
Total current assets BREEE 572,233 227,268
Total assets HWEE 574,189 229,224
Equity FEm
Equity attributable to the Company’s AATEREEABGER
equity holders
Share capital R& X 18 65,865 58,167
Other reserves H A 19 582,910 222,097
Accumulated losses RETEE 19 (75,133) (51,491)
Total equity B 573,642 228,773
Liabilities aE
Current liabilities FREBaE
Accrued expenses and other payables fEET & B K E A FE S R0E 22 547 451
Total liabilities F= i 547 451
Total equity and liabilities HERRERE 574,189 229,224
Net current assets REBEETFE 571,686 226,817
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 573,642 228,773

The financial statements on pages 55 to 140 were approved by the Board of

Directors on 18th March 2014 and were signed on its behalf.

GUO lJiang
Director
EIba
FE

The notes on pages 62 to 140 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

FESSR 40BN EHMBHREN-_S—EF=A+N
HEEZESHAETH N IEERREZSHEE -

LEE Wee Ong
Director
LEE Wee Ong
ZF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 &Z-T—=

R

FT—A=+—RHIFE

Attributable to the Company’s equity

holders
KAREREEAES
Share Other (Accumulated  Sub-total Non- Total
capital reserves losses)/ controlling
retained interests
earnings
RE  HtRE  (RiER)/ Nt FERESR -
Brls
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR
(Note 19)
(BizE19)
Balance at 1st January 2012 RZB——F-f— 56,884 270,485 (54,876) 272,493 14 272,507
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year REE R - - 66,724 66,724 (1,302) 65,422
Other comprehensive income Hit2EEE
Currency translation difference EHETER 19 - 37 - 37 - 37
Total comprehensive income EELIN L - 37 66,724 66,761 (1,302) 65,459
Transactions with owners BRBAETZRS
Shares purchased under share award scheme 1R (7 22BN 218 A 2 IR 19 - (10,447) - (10,447) - (10,447)
Share based compensation - value of RS T2 - BB R 19 - 8,766 - 8,766 S 8,766
employee services BE
Contribution from non-controlling interests ~ 3EERRER T & - - - 110,200 110,200
Exercise of share options TR 18 19 1,283 8,072 - 9,355 = 9,355
Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries FAMB AR EAREEREEET 20 = (1,144) - (1,144) (12,004) (13,148)
without change of control WA
Total transactions with owners BEEANETIR 588 1,283 5,247 - 6,530 98,196 104,726
Balance at 31st December 2012 W=E——E+=-R=+—-R&H 58,167 275,769 11,848 345,784 96,908 442,692
Balance at 1st January 2013 RZZ-=5-A—-B&# 58,167 275,769 11,848 345784 96908 442,692
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Profit for the year TEE &7 - - 153,326 153,326 (1,792) 151,534
Other comprehensive loss Ht2EEE
Currengy translation difference ERELEE 19 - (2,692) - (2,692) - (2,692)
Total comprehensive income 2ERAEE - (2,692) 153,326 150,634 (1,792) 148,842
Transactions with owners BREARTZRS
Shares purchased under share award scheme R (7 22R:H 218 A 2 IR {H 19 = (84,650) = (84,650) = (84,650)
Share based compensation - value of MRSt 2 e — B BRI BIE 19 - 22,566 - 22,566 - 22,566
employee services
Issuance of new shares L) 18 5,659 402,274 - 407,933 = 407,933
Exercise of share options e 18,19 2,039 20,847 - 22,886 - 22,886
Change in ownership interests in RIBAREREERSED 20 - 32,125 - 32,125 7,875 50,000
subsidiaries without change of control 1B & S
Contribution from non-controlling interests ~ 3EERR#ER T & - - - - 205 205
Total transactions with owners EEEANETIR 588 7,698 393,162 - 400,860 18,080 418,940
Balance at 31st December 2013 F+-A=1—R&% 65,865 666,239 65,174 897,278 113,19 1,010,474
The notes on pages 62 to 140 are an integral part of these consolidated — E62Z140B T AA HIERENRELS o

financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
SHIRERER

For the year ended 31st December 2013 BZEZ-Z—=F+-"F=t+—HILFE

2013 2012
—_g—= —E——4F
Note RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Hiat AR¥T T ARBFIT
Cash flows from operating activities REZXBCRERE
Cash generated from operations IR EEIR S SIS 34(a) 174,539 146,325
Interest received =@ RSN 16,555 11,807
Interest paid EATHLE (340) -
Government grant received BT E B 197,000 =
The People’s Republic of China (“PRC") EffhEARLRE([HE])
income tax paid FT1SH (23,056) (6,443)
Net cash generated from operating activities JEE XK 2HERAFE 364,698 151,689
Cash flows from investing activities RETEZRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAME - BE REE (32,149) (46,887)
Prepayment for purchases of property, plant BAME - BE REEBERNR
and equipment (22,800) =
Acquisition of land use rights and investment L B+ 4 {55 PR RE S 3R B W 2
properties (208,269) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME - BREMEEFTS5KIE
equipment 34(b) 880 59
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries  HBEHTE A B EBIMEZS 20 - (13,148)
Loans to employees BN TEE (2,333) (31,467)
Loan repayment received from third party and ~ BWIEEEEER
employees 7,937 -
Government grant received for acquisition TUEME  BE &
of properties, plant and equipment AR AT & BY 9,300 -
Investment in an associate REEE QT 2 IRE (20,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities BRETEHZEHESRHFR (267,434) (91,443)
Cash flows from financing activities RETHRERE
Issuance of new shares BITEFAD 18,19 407,933 -
Proceeds from borrowings i or ] 201,840 =
Purchase of shares under share award scheme ﬁ%}ﬂ}ﬂﬁﬁﬁb sFEIE A 2B H 19 (84,650) (10,447)
Repayments of borrowings BEEg 23 (88,169) -
Capital contribution from a non-controlling IR AR R R T &
shareholder 50,205 110,200
Exercise of share options ITIEEE AR A 18,19 22,886 9,355
Repayments for finance lease obligations EEREHSRE (3,436) (1,821)
Additions of finance lease obligations FiERmERERT 1,356 -
Net cash generated from financing activities BEEREI 2R ESRAFHE 507,965 107,287
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 0o MRS FEYIENFE 605,229 167,533
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REYZRE MR EED
of the year 422,552 254,982
Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and BHERBEEEYIEY
cash equivalents (F1R), &t (2,692) 37
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RERZE 2 RREEED 1,025,089 422,552

The notes on pages 62 to 140 are an integral part of these consolidated — H62F140E I TEAA GBI KRR MR EE LS o
financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

HC International, Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) organise a business-to-business community across China
by providing business information through both on-line and off-
line channels. The Group operates an on-line market place, provides
industrial search result prioritising services through its business-to-
business website “hc360.com” and publishes its own trade catalogues
and yellow page directories in China. The Group also constructs a B2B
household electrical appliances business exhibition centre, through the
operation of which provides vertical in-depth services and one-stop
solution for B2B buyers and sellers.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is the 4th Floor, One Capital
Place, P. O. Box 847, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands,
British West Indies.

The Company has its primary listing on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Renminbi (RMB’'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 18th March 2014.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and under the historical cost convention.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)
New and amended standards have been issued and effective
for the financial year beginning 1st January 2013

2 FESHBEBEw

(a)

mBEE(R)
REOE—=F—F—ABBZHBEFER
BRI B2 HET RASIEZTER

HKAS 1 Financial statement presentation BAEG AR BRE 2 E AR
(Amendment) regarding other comprehensive income F15R(ERT) B HRERE7
HKAS 19 Employee benefits BAEE AR EERH
(Amendment) £195%(B5])
HKFRS 1 First time adoption on government loans BEAMEREER  BREMBRER
(Amendment) EALACCHD)
HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures — EAMBWELN SRMIA: BE-
(Amendment) offsetting financial assets and financial EVEACC D) HEERMEER
liabilities Ea=CiT
HKFRS 10, 11 and 12 Transition guidance ERUHREER  BEES
(Amendment) E105% « B1%
eV ACHD)
Annual improvements T ——FFE
2011 e
HKFRS 1 First time adoption on government grants EAMBEEEL  BREARTRED
F15%
HKAS 32 Financial instruments; Presentation B e SRIA: 27|
£325%
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements BAMBEEER  SOBImE
£10%%
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements BAMBREEN HRZH
F115%
HKFRS 12 Disclosures of interests in other entities BANBMEEN BREREMEEC
F12% R
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement EREMBmEEL ATEFE
£135%
HKAS 27 (Revised) Separate financial statements B ER B B Rk
F275 (4E3T)
HKAS 28 (Revised) Associates and joint ventures BEGEHER BN\ REA AT
F285% (KEAT)
HK(IFRIC)-INT 20 Stripping costs in the production phase of A (BRMBmE wRBEEEERRZ
a surface mine 2EZEE)- FIERB A
220%%

WEN—E—-=F—F— AR ZFBF
ERERER 2 BEMBHRELNREE
(B BRERRE S ) RRRAeY
AEBERERTE -

There are no HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC) interpretations that are effective
for the first time for the financial period beginning on 1st January
2013 that would have a material impact on the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HP R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHBZE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a) mEEE(E)
New and amended standards have been issued but are not WEEBFERAR—FE—=F—F— A%
effective for the financial year beginning 1st January 2013 R BE B B AR 5 R L2 FTET R
and have not been early adopted ABIEZTER)
Effective for
accounting period
beginning on or after
RT5 BHBRE SN
ZENE TR LR
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Presentation — offsetting financial 1st January 2014
assets and financial liabilities
B AERIFEI29E (185]) SMIA: 2% - EBiHEeREEReMAE —E-MNFE—-H—H
HKFRS 10, 12 and HKAS 27 Consolidation for investment entities 1st January 2014
BBV ELNE05 - F1298  AHREER —T—mF—A—H
MEAGHEFE275
HKAS 36 Impairment of assets on recoverable amount disclosures 1st January 2014
BB G ERIFE3658 BEERI U [Cl e 7R 2 B ERIE —E-NFE-H—H
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement — 1st January 2014
Novation of derivatives
BEGRTAERIE395 (1E7T) SRIA : BARE-—FMITETAR —Z-—mF¥—R—H
HK(IFRIC)-INT 21 Levies 1st January 2014
BEHEBRHSEREREZE)RE BN —ZE-mFE—-H—H
B215%

HKAS19 (Amendment) Defined benefit plan 1st July 2014
BB gERIE 1998 (18R]) EFAR A2 —E-NFE+A—H
Annual improvement 2012 1st July 2014
= — —FEEHUE —E-MNFE+HA—H
Annual improvement 2013 1st July 2014
—E=FFENE —E—MFLH—H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1st January 2015
BBV BEREEFER SETHE —ZE-hF—H—H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1st January 2016
BBV ELEE 1455 RMEZBELERE —E—R"F—-A—H
The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact REEEEFEZEN BBMIERE
of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether BRI 2 2 - S MARAEREEZ A
these new HKFRSs would have a significant impact on its results of \%ﬁﬁ&‘#ﬁi%/—%,ﬁ‘ $IH I R B TS AR

operations and financial position. LERERNTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to
31st December.

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have more than 50%
of the voting power but is able to govern the financial and
operating policies by virtue of de-facto control.

De-facto control may arise from circumstances where it does
not have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to
govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-
facto control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Profits and losses resulting from inter-company transactions
that are recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

2 FESHBEBEw

(b) #H=&

BHUBRREEARRREMEREA
ABET-A=1t—HILZMBE/E -

() HERE

MEAREAEEERE

REBRRZMA

BHER)  —RETHFEEFLER
RREHEE - B EARERESE
5 —H 8K - BATAI{T AT L
BB ERZEENEER
ER - EAEERE M
50% 2R - ERRRRE
B 22 1) A 1 T 2 L B IR T A IR
B BN RO TG -

I RIFHS0% A HIHZHE - BT
BREREHREEEEMRREE
BER ExSBRTHEELAER

PRI o

MEARBZEHREREREE 2
RiE2EA G - HREHERIEZ

BEIEEB -

SEARRIZENRS ~ R
R T IARSEH - MBERER

SBEARR ZFEE R 5 E L4
REBIRTIALHE - EHBER
& FHEBRARMNEAERED KK
B DARE(R BN £ [ PR ER AR O BRR

REE—2K -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued)

(i)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date, any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as
a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred and the fair value of
non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

@ HC International, Inc - Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change
of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHBZE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued) (b) #EE)
(iii) Associates (iii) BERE

Associates are all entities over which the Group has BERNREMEASEHEREXR
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying FENEEZHIE B - IR
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting BT H20% £50% 2 IR ©
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the REERR 2 REUERGTHEA
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the IR o BB R L - REVIHIEKA
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying R W B IE N SOR > BRE B R
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s RIEH RS B R O1E 2 3
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of KREFEZ c AEBEREE QT2
acquisition. The Group’s investment in associates includes KA BIERNKIER R 2 R -

goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but WREE S N A 2 B R D
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of MINEBEARZEN - AR %A
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive REMERE s AR 2 SR 8
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate. HEEPIE D EFR D EEE R (WE
A) -

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is AEEELBERBERENRERA
recognised in the income statement, and its share of post- wR - mMERGKREEEMEE K
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income w2 BE RN H A 4R S W N i
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a R I ¥ A BRE A 7F A FE
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the B MAKEEGE-—RKBERFZ
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate ERENSBRENZEERRZ
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any s - BIE (AT b A R R
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise 1 AEETSHERAE—FTEHE -
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive MRIEE B KBS QA RE ARSI H
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. ERESIEHATRK

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is AEBREMREBPEEREE R
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is AZHERESAEEMNEERERE
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount B o WFERERE  AfEgIR
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable Bt N mln O e REEAREAEL
amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises EZHAERELE  UREHE
the amount adjacent to “share of profit/(loss) of associates” Gl Rl EREE AR, (&
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. B) I EREHETHE -

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream AEBERABERNRMEZ EFRT
transactions between the Group and its associate are HRGMEEZIBERAEER 27
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements B EMR AR - HEELAIERE
only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the BEERBENRI 2= AR © Bk
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the FEARSRECEREEL TR
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset B2ERE  SRREREETAY
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been B BEE R R 2 B BRERLE
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the REE - AR S RNE B ATEA
policies adopted by the Group. IR ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Consolidation (Continued)
(iii) Associates (Continued)
Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associates are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

(c) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors who make
strategic decisions.

(d) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”). Hong Kong
Dollars is regarded as the Company’s functional currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

(iiij) Group companies
The results and financial positions of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iiij) Group companies (Continued)

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

(e) Land use rights

()

Land use rights are recorded at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Land use
rights are amortised using the straight-line method over their lease
terms from 40 to 50 years.

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It also
includes properties that are being constructed or developed for
future use as investment properties. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at carrying values, representing cost less
depreciation and impairment provision. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives of 40 years.

0 HC International, Inc - Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Net realisable value takes into account the
price ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable variable
selling expenses and anticipated cost to completion. Development
cost of property comprises construction costs, cost of land use
rights, borrowing costs, and professional fees incurred during
the development period. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale. Properties under
development are classified as current assets unless those will not
be realised in one normal operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising buildings, computer
and telecommunications equipment, fixtures, fittings and office
equipment, leasehold improvements and motor vehicles, are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Motor vehicles classified as finance lease commences depreciation
from the time when the assets become available for its intended
use. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over its estimated useful lives, at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold improvements

HEMEEE

Buildings

BF

Computer and telecommunications equipment

B RN
Fixtures, fittings and office equipment
RE - REPAERE
Motor vehicles

T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(@)

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (note 2(j)).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction or pending installation and is stated at cost less
impairment losses, if any. No provision for depreciation is made
on assets under construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and available for their intended use.
On completion, the relevant assets are transferred to property,
plant and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets

(i) Software licences
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to their
intended use. These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of five years.

(i) Data library

Costs incurred on acquiring the data library are recognised
as an intangible asset where the technical feasibility has been
demonstrated, and there is an ability to sell or to use the
assets that will generate probable future economic benefits.
Such acquisition cost is recognised as an asset and amortised
on a straight-line basis over a period of 10 years to reflect
the pattern in which the related economic benefits are
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

()

(k)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group'’s loan and receivables
comprise “trade and other receivables”, “amount due for related
company” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the consolidated
balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HP R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Financial assets (Continued)

(U]

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available for sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
“gains and losses from investment securities”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of other income. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHEE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets (m) £@MEERE

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. If a loan
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument'’s fair value using
an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a Group of
financial assets is impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses the
criteria referred to assets carried at amortised cost.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available for sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed
through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Direct selling costs

Direct selling costs, which principally are comprised of sales
commissions and agency fees paid in respect of subscription
revenue received in advance, are deferred and are charged ratably
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the term of the respective service contracts when the services are
rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes)
is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity
holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net
of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company'’s equity holders.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity
directly, respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the company’s subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHBZE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Current and deferred income tax (Continued) () ENRIEZEMESH(E)
(i) Deferred income tax (i) BAEFTEH

Inside basis differences HEEEL A
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, BEMBHABEEIREERAR
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases ZHARBERNEESCERE
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the B EAOMIEHmRER - A
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax i iR AE T 18 B B 2K B B 8 V) P HE
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial R B THERR ¢ i el R P15 10
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not REVNTHER-ERR G E R I
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset et RERBBEIR S5 (XS
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination PRI 2 BERBIE @ BRI
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting AT AR « IBIEFAEFIAGE
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined ERBIAB BB B E(R
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or EETE - RSN BIREFTS T
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are BEZRIBLEMEHEEFER
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset FERA -

is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent RIEFMBHEET A LA ARK
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available JE SR 750 4 ) B8 A B PR 2 Iy 22 RE K
against which the temporary differences can be utilised. SHm AR ©

Outside basis differences HEEE )

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable BEMBEEFIHRMEAR
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, BERNRRERARHECREEEY
associates and joint arrangements, except for deferred TR EEMBE - EMAREEL
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the THIE R AR 2 BORERE - WEA]
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is BETE R TH R AR RN @R E 2 IRIEFR
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the SR B EABRIN - REE—MEE
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to control N NGRS g EE
the reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only M REEEEBRETASBE AL
where there is an agreement in place that gives the Group NEREZEREZBOER - TATT
the ability to control the reversal of the temporary difference o

not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible RIEFEHEERNMNBEAR - B
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, ERARAR L 2 REEE 2]
associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is MR R E 2R AT ER
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future BARERARRER - kB R HMER
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which Bm A SH AT S AR ERE 2 IER
the temporary difference can be utilised. R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(s) Employee benefits
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Retirement benefit costs

The full-time employees of the Group are covered by various
government-sponsored pension plans under which the
employees are entitled to a monthly pension based on certain
formulas.

The relevant government agencies are responsible for the
pension liabilities to these retired employees. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these pension plans. Under
these plans, the Group has no obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made.

Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled within 12
months and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when they are settled.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity settled, share-based compensation
plans. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

Under the Share Award Scheme, the directors and certain
employees of the Group are entitled to receive shares in
the Company. The shares held under trust by a financial
institution (“Trustee”) for the benefit of the director and
employees, would be paid and the paid up consideration
would be capitalised in the Company's reserves. The Trustee
has been instructed to buy shares from the market using the
funds held by the Trustee to grant shares to the director and
employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme
under which options may be granted to subscribe for the
Company's shares.

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the share options and shares awarded is
recognised as an expense.

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the share
options and shares granted, excluding the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of shares or
share options that are expected to vest. The total amount
expensed is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of shares or share options
that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to
either: terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after balance sheet date are
discounted to present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HP R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Borrowings (Continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services stated net of value
added taxes, in the ordinary course of the Group's activities.

Revenue is recognised as follows:

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group's activities as described below. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type
of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

Adbvertising income from industry portals, trade catalogues, yellow
page directories and printed periodicals is recognised on the date
of publication.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(y)

(2)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Subscription fee income from on-line services is recognised over the
period of contracts entered with the customers. The unrecognised
portions of contract sum are recognised as deferred revenue.

Revenue from the hosting of trade exhibitions and business
seminars is recognised upon conclusion of the exhibitions or
seminars.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, using the
effective interest method.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of
property, plant and equipment, where the Group has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership, are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the lease period so as to
produce a constant and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the
lease term.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair values
when there is a reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
within “other income” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) Dividend distribution

FESHBERBE g

(aa) BE DK

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AIAR AR Z BB R AR B BER L
RS 2 AR A S B R AR R 2 B TR
RAERRBELE -

BB B

3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 BEEBEE
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: RNEERHEREBmEGS B BERE
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and fair value interest T35 [ B (B B S B L B e X (B F R &
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk %) EERRBRRABDESRAR - AEH
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of ZEBRERERTIESNERMSE
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects HRBUDRRETE B EE RN B 5%
on the Group’s financial performance. RBERZZE -
Risk management is carried out by a central finance department EREERAEEEENEEEE PR
(the “Finance Department”) headed by the Chief Financial Officer WIS EBP ([ BA RS20 1) 1T o BATSEPERANEE
of the Group. The Finance Department identifies and evaluates Bz 2@ HPIRTBAEME - BRI &R
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group'’s operating R - AREEER R EIE LI E #E
units to cope with overall risk management as well as specific areas (s ER - EERRKTEE S RR)
such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 1L
(a) Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates in the PRC and majority of its
transactions are denominated in RMB. The Group
has no material foreign currency denominated assets
and liabilities and does not have material exposure on
foreign exchange risk.

(i) Fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from fixed deposit
categorised in “cash and cash equivalents”, loan to a
third party and the employees categorised in “other
receivables” and borrowings. These balances were issued
at fixed rates, which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. Profit before tax for the year would
have been approximately RMB9,627,000 higher/lower
(2012: RMB4,794,000 higher/lower) if market interest
rates had been 100 basis point higher/lower, with all
other variables held constant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

(c)

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The Group’s credit
risk mainly arises from cash and cash equivalents, as well as
credit exposures to trade and other receivables and amount
due from a related company. The Finance Department has
policies in place to monitor the exposures to these credit risks
on an on-going basis.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that provision
of services is made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic credit evaluations of
its customers.

For balance with a related company and loan to a third party
and the employees, management assesses the recoverability
of the balances taking into account the history of default
of these companies and the employees, and their financial
performance.

The table below shows the cash and cash equivalents held by
different type of financial institutions at balance sheet date.

3

B RS B B I ()
31 MEBEBREZ(E)
(b) EEEE

EERBRTIIRARERE - REE 2
EFERREIERERELRAEEE
) DA T JRE W BR R T L At JE LRI
A R e W BR BsE X Bl R IR 2 fE B AL
B o MBEHEREEBOR - WA
ERMER ZEEERRE -

AEEERIGE S BERERRTS TS
MARFEEREZELRME M
AEETEEREPETEMEHT
ity °

HRERBARNBRBERERTE
=HkEE  BEEREZEAR
NE B 2 R R M RB AT
BRI Z AT EIZE -

TREHN A TR SR EENEE B
R e R EFHED -

2013 2012
—Eg—-= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Cash at banks and bank deposits IR1TIR® RIBTTHER

Listed financial institutions e R 955,817 265,915
Unlisted financial institutions JE ETh S Bhikrs 68,124 154,737
Cash on hand FoRIRE 1,148 1,900
Total #aEt 1,025,089 422,552

Liquidity risk (0 ZBHELEE

Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
sufficient cash from operating activities.

As at 31st December 2013, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group approximated RMB1,025,089,000 (2012:
RMB422,552,000).

HREEERENZZEE - A%E
BRERLEXBHESEHRES N
HRESERIE -

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H ' ' &
SEZBHERRSEBAMHNAAR
% 1,025,089,000 T ( =& — =4 :
AR #422,552,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HP R

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3 HREREEs

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEREEREGE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () mEELEEE
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into TRBEAEBEZANIHAE 25
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period THHEEAEE R A EREHES
from the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity HABRIDHT - REPEENSTE
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual SRR SRE ©
undiscounted cash flows.
Group REE [
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 2and5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
1R 1226 2E5F S5FLE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
At 31st December 2013 R=-Z—=F+=7
E=E
Trade payables EREER 2,622 - - - 2,622
Accrued expenses and FEET B A R E A EFRIE
other payables 49,011 - - - 49,011
Finance lease obligations ~ FtEMEHF 995 1,042 423 - 2,460
Borrowings BE 12,230 85,185 30,609 - 128,024
At 31st December 2012 HR=-ZE——-%+—-A
Er=E
Trade payables EREER 2,825 - - - 2,825
Accrued expenses and FERT B A R E A 5IE
other payables 24,009 - - - 24,009
Finance lease obligations ~ FEFES(T 1,814 1,814 1,432 = 5,060
Company AR A]
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 2and5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
1FR 1226 2855 5L E At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
At 31st December 2013 R=-ZE—=%+=A
=t+-—H
Accrued expenses and FERTE B L E A e 0B
other payables 547 - - - 547
At 31st December 2012 R—-ZE——&F+—-A8
E=E
Accrued expenses and FERT & B R E A 5IE
other payables 451 - - = 451
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis based on a ratio calculated
by dividing total loans and finance lease obligations by total equity
(excluding non-controlling interests). Management considers a
ratio of not more than 20% as reasonable. The gearing ratio for
the Group is 12.9% (2012: 1.2%).

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over and above
balance required for working capital management are transferred
to interest bearing current accounts and time deposits, with
appropriate maturities to manage its overall liquidity position.
As at 31st December 2013, the Group maintains cash and
cash equivalents of approximately RMB1,025,089,000 (2012:
RMB422,552,000), that are expected to be readily available to
meet the cash outflows of its financial liabilities.

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and liabilities
including cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
trade payables, accruals other payables, borrowings and finance
lease obligation and amount due from a related company,
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HP R

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

(a) Provision for impairment of receivables
Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment of the
collectability of trade and other receivables from each counter
party. In making its judgement, management considers a wide
range of factors such as results of following-up procedures
performed by sales personnel, customers’ payment record,
creditability and subsequent settlements.

(b) Share-based payment
Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment of the fair
value of the share-based payments. In making its judgement,
management considers a wide range of factors such as the share
price of the Group and the expected vesting number of share
options.

(c) Taxes

The Group is subject to taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for various kinds
of taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
period in which such determination is made.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified
as the executive directors. The executive directors review the Group'’s
internal report in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The CODM considers the business from product perspective. From a
product perspective, the CODM assesses the performance of trade
catalogues and yellow page directories, on-line services, and analysis and
seminars and other services.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based
on a measure of profit/(loss) before tax. This measurement basis excludes
other income and the effects of non-recurring expenditure from the
operating segments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AR

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

As at 31st December 2013, the Group is organised into the following
business segments:

(0

(ii)

On-line services, which generates subscription fee income by
provision of a reliable platform to customers to do business and
meet business partners on-line.

Trade catalogues and yellow page directories, which generates
advertising income by provision of trade information through trade
catalogues and yellow page directories published by the Group.

DEER @)
RZB—=F+=-A=+—8 A&EEAHAH
THIEBDED

@)

(ii)

EMERY - REPREAETERSE
EREETRR A MEREBBHEL
FIBIEUA -

TRXBHEAFEABS  BRAKELIR
ZIAXBEMFAERSRETEHERER
EEESBRA -

(i) Seminars and other services, which provides hosting services of (i) EFHEEEMART - EMATSRE -
seminars.
(iv) B2B household electrical appliances business exhibition centre; (V) BZBREBWEREHRL ARZIH A

RS MREBE-_ZT—=%+_-A4
=+—HIEFEIEELERA - BEBL
Wiz o

since this segment is still under development, no revenue
generated during the year ended 31st December 2013, no separate
segment disclosed.

BE-T-=F+-A=+-RALFE 5%
B B2 P M E K EMR S -

There were no sales or other transactions between the business
segments for the year ended 31st December 2013.

Year ended 31st December 2013
BE-ZE—=Ff+-A=1+—HLEFE

Trade
catalogues
and yellow Seminars
On-line page and other
services  directories services Total
Tra¥E& gER
EERE REHB# H fth R 7% et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR%®TR AR®¥TR AR®TR
Revenue HEKA 693,903 42,924 100,894 837,721
Segment results DEbELE 202,380 (49,013) 13,071 166,438
Other income EH A 3,473
Finance income BE YA 16,555
Finance cost RLE R A (340)
Profit before income tax ¥R PRAS T Al A 186,126
Other information: Hipgg -
Depreciation and amortisation e RE Y 18,791 2,190 2,956 23,937
Share based compensation expense AR {7 &E A 2 f 18 2 18,690 1,156 2,720 22,566
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B HP R

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 Z2@MER@
Year ended 31st December 2012
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE
Trade
catalogues

and yellow Seminars

On-line page and other
services directories services Total

TR E 23Kk
Btk KEEHEBH H AR “ast
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Revenue SHEWA 411,462 54,866 82,240 548,568
Segment results 7RI 94,341 (44,333) 13,820 63,828
Other income PN 3,307
Finance income BhE YA 11,807
Finance cost B & AN (615)
Profit before income tax & B 1S %5 il s ) 78,327

Other information: HiER :

Depreciation and amortisation E LY 17,394 2,313 1,503 21,210
Share based compensation expense VAR {7 &£ 2 fE R 2 7,246 669 851 8,766

The Group is domiciled in the PRC. All the revenue from external
customers in the PRC for the year ended 31st December 2013 (2012:

same).

As at 31st December 2013, the total non-current assets other than
financial instruments and deferred tax assets (there were no employment
benefit assets and rights arising under insurance contracts) located in
the PRC is approximately RMB667,996,000 (2012: RMB225,222,000),
and the total of these non-current assets located in other countries is Nil

(2012: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

6 LAND USE RIGHTS - GROUP 6 TifFRAE-—XEE
The Group’s interests in land use rights in the PRC represent prepaid REE R B L i 2 BT E R40E
operating lease payments with a lease period of from 40 to 50 years and S0 2 TR LS - HERmFES TN
their net book value is analysed as follows: TS 3

2013 2012
=F-= —F=F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTTT

Opening net book amount FHREFE 17,298 17,725
Addition INE 172,341 -
Amortisation B (4,020) (427)
Closing net book amount FIRERENFE 185,619 17,298
Cost jB%N 193,665 21,324
Accumulated amortisation REHEH (4,456) (4,026)
Accumulated amortisation charge capitalised in RIREYEE R

investment properties Rt ET T (3,590) =
Closing net book amount FREREFE 185,619 17,298
Amortisation of the Group'’s land use rights is included in administrative REE T A BT ASHEERER
expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. ZATHERA °

2013 2012
—E—=5F —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T

Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBAIME TSI HERFE
Leases of between 40 to 50 years FAEAN T 402=50F 185,619 17,298
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HP R

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP

7 EVEE-F&KE

Software
development Data library Total
BFBAE iEE st
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREETTT ARETT AREET T
At 1st January 2012 R=Z2—=-F-—-HA—H
Cost AR 25,409 21,986 47,395
Accumulated amortisation and RETHEEORE
impairment (24,945) (21,986) (46,931)
Net book amount BRI RE 464 _ 464
Year ended 31st December 2012 Bz—F——%+=A
=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount EYREEE 464 _ 464
Amortisation (a) #E34(a) (455) = (455)
Impairment R - i _
Closing net book amount FRREFE 9 - 9
At 31st December 2012 R-Z——F+=A
=qr=Ig
Cost AR 25,409 21,986 47,395
Accumulated amortisation and RETHEESEORE
impairment (25,400) (21,986) (47,386)
Net book amount BREFE 9 = 9
Year ended 31st December 2013 Bz=2—=%+=A
=+—HLEFE
Opening net book amount FYIRREFE 9 = 9
Amortisation (a) #E3H(a) (4) = (4)
Impairment A - al _
Closing net book amount FRREFE 5 = 5
At 31st December 2013 R=-ZB—-=5+=A4
Er=
Cost (D% 25,409 21,986 47,395
Accumulated amortisation and REEERORE
impairment (25,404) (21,986) 47,390
Net book amount BREFE 5 = 5

(@ Amortisation of intangible assets is included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 8 ¥#*¥ - BERRXRE-—LEE

Computer Fixtures,
and telecom- fittings
Construction munications and office Leasehold Motor
in progress Buildings equipment equipment  improvements vehicles Total
ERR KB ERBR BENE
ERIE B¥ EfRf BARG k8 byt @it
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  AR¥Tr  AR%Tr  ARETR  ARBTR ARETr ARETR
At 1st January 2012 R=B-=%-A-H
Cost A 743 164,856 81,108 15,439 6,337 7,930 276,413
Accumulated depreciation ZEhE - (21,049) (63,728) (8322) (4,089) 872) (98,060)
Net book amount BHFE 743 143,807 17,380 717 2,48 7,058 178,353
Year ended 31st December 2012 HZ=Z--F+=8
Zt-BLFE
Opening net book amount ENREE 743 143,807 17,380 717 2,048 7,058 178,353
Additions NE 18,954 9,447 3,037 2,122 993 14,767 49,920
Disposals il - - (30) - - - (30)
Transfers i3 (18,245) 15,49 35 2,714 - - =
Depreciation (a) &) = (8,159) (5,857) (2,055) (1,292) (2,965) (20,328)
Closing net book amount EREEHE 1452 160,591 14,565 10,498 1,949 18,860 207915
At 31st December 2012 RZB-Z%1+ZA
=t-A
Cost R 1,452 189,799 81919 20,868 7,330 22,697 324,065
Accumulated depreciation ZithE = (29,208) (67,354) (10,370) (5,381) (3.837) (116,150)
Net book amount FEFE 1,452 160,591 14,565 10,498 1,949 18,860 207,915
Year ended 31st December 2013  BZ=Z-=£+=4
Zt-BLEE
Opening net book amount ENREEE 1452 160,591 14,565 10,498 1,949 18,860 207915
Additions NE 1,167 6,792 10,769 1819 150 10,638 31335
Disposals e = - ® 3 - (1,150) (1,161)
Transfers i (1,363) 1133 230 - - - -
Depreciation (a) &) - (10,146) (5,397) (2,800) (1,451) (3,709) (23,503)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 1,256 158,370 20,159 9,514 648 24,639 214,586
At 31st December 2013 R=Z-Z%1+Z4
Eqr=T8
Cost AR 1,256 197,724 81414 22,631 7,480 31,920 342,425
Accumulated depreciation ESpi - (39,354) (61,259) (13,117) (6832) (7,281) (127,839)
Net book amount REFE 1,256 158,370 20,159 9,514 648 24,639 214,586
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 8 #¥*¥ - BERZE —FEE®)

(Continued)

(a) Depreciation of RMB4,269,000 (2012: RMB2,680,000) is included (@) HEARE4L,269,000T(ZFE—=4F: A
in selling and marketing expenses; and RMB19,234,000 (2012: [R%2,680,0007T) & A R #19,234,0007T
RMB17,648,000) in administrative expenses in the consolidated —ZT——F : AR¥17,648,0007T) 5 5l
statement of comprehensive income. FIAGHREER ZIHERTISHEE

RARITHRERA -
The motor vehicles include the following amounts where the Group is a AERAREHEE TASEEAHAZ T
lessee under a finance lease: 2EA
2013
—E—=
RMB’000
ARET T

Cost AR 3,785

Accumulated depreciation REIE (433)

Net book amount BREFE 3,352

9 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 9 BREYHE
RMB’'000
ARETTT

Opening net book amount as at 1st January 2013 R-ZE—=F—F—BZFVERmFE -

Additions INE 32,155

Interest capitalised EAR(EFE 3,773

Disposals HE -

Depreciation and amortisation e K iH -

Amortisation charge capitalised in investment RILEMEE MBS

properties 3,590

Closing net book amount as at 31st December 2013 R_ZE—=F+_A=+—HB 7 FRERFE 39,518
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The investment properties are carried at cost. They are under
construction as at 31st December 2013.

An independent valuation of the Group’s Investment properties was
performed by the valuer, Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited, to
determine the fair value of the investment properties amounting to
RMB440 million as at 31st December 2013. Valuation was based on
residual method of valuation by establishing the market value of the
properties with appropriate deduction on construction costs.

The fair value measurement at 31st December 2013 using significant
other observable inputs (level 2) which is RMB39,518,000. The Group’s
investment property was valued at 31st December 2013 by independent
professionally qualified valuer who holds a recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the location of
the investment property valued.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that review the
valuation performed by the independent valuer for financial reporting
purpose. This team reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO)
and the audit committee (AC).

At each financial year end of the finance department:

e Verfies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

e Assess property valuations movements when compared to the prior
year valuation report;

o Holds discussion with the independent valuer.

BEWE @)
ZEREMERRARRHE B2 -F =
F+= A=+—BIEAERRBIEH -

AEBREMEZ B G EHGEMEEHE
EEERERARETT METREMER
R =F+- A=+ HZAFEHNAEAR
% 440,000,0007T ° ATl JyiE MR W BT
SEEREIREEN AR R EGEEET -

MN-E—=F+_-_A=1+—BFEAEMBEET
BRBB(ERA) 2ATFEFEAARE
39,518,0007T - RZE—=F+_-_A=+—
B AEBEREMEEB I EELEBGER
TR - ZEEMSECRAI BT EER
WA FEISE Y2 P b [ 3 HA AT B8 o

AEEPBHEPIRE—EEE - AEMRBT
HEMRE B RERENGERS - ZEKE
EABEFMBERERZ B SER
REMBERR - BT

o BREBUMEBMEAMEEEHE

o AHERREEAREEHEREHRE

o HBY{LERMERMR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

10 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 10 BRHPYE
2013
==
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Properties under development comprise: BERPYERIE
— Construction cost and other capitalised —ERNAREME R
expenditures 32,154
— Interest capitalised —BREF B 3,773
— Land use rights — T ihfE R 172,341
208,268
The properties under development include cost of acquiring rights to use BRAYEDFERES TURREARIERM
certain lands, which are located in the People’s Republic of China (“the ([HRE ) iz B FARE - ARE E BT
PRC"), for property development over a fixed period. Land use rights are FER 2K o T ERREIRA0FHAIRE -
held on leases of 40 years.
All properties under development are expected to be completed beyond BEMBERPUMEFNETEEBRRE

normal operating cycle and included under non-current assets. T Wt AFERBEEIERT °

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND LOAN TO 11 RHIBARIZRERERTHE
A SUBSIDIARY - COMPANY YNGR N

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT

Investments, unlisted shares, at cost (a) & IE LMD - R ANa) 1,956 1,956

Loan to a subsidiary (b) B3R T H B A F)b) 572,050 227,079

@ HC International, Inc - Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AR

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND LOAN TO

A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (continued)

(@) The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December

2013:

Name

£

kind of legal entity

Place of incorporation Nature of business

and
place of operation

EBMER
e

1M1 RRBARZRERERTHE
A R YN (C)
(@) UTNARZZ—=F+-A=+—HFxZ

" Hong Kong Huicong International
Group Limited ("HKHC")

| BREREREEBRAR
(I&E28))

China Media Network
International Inc.

ERE

EREBREREERMBRAR

EREABRBINERLA

ERERBANBERAF

British VVirgin Islands,

British Virgin Islands,

BERERERAA

The PRC, limited liability

The PRC, limited liability

The PRC, limited liability

The PRC, limited liability

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

REER-FE

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

REEKR-FE

Provision of business
information in
the PRC
REFEER—FE

Provision of business
information in
the PRC
REBEEN—FE

Provision of business
information in
the PRC
REFEER—FE

Provision of business
information in
the PRC
REBEEA—FE

MEAEZEE
Proportion of
ordinary
shares
Particulars of held by
issued share capital/ non
paid-up share Interest  controlling
capital/debt securities held interest
FER
BRTRESBERE/ R
ERESFE s  EERLA
21,000,000 ordinary shares 100% -

of US$0.01 each
21,000,0008%

SREEIET

ZERR

50,000 ordinary shares of 100% -
US$1 each

50,000 B EE1E T
ZEBR

RMB 110,000,000 100% =

A#110,000,0007T

RMB 10,000,000 100% =

A #10,000,0007

RMB 10,000,000 100% =

A#10,000,0007C

RMB5,000,000 100% =

A #5,000,0007C
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HP R

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND LOAN TO

A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Continued)

(@) The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December

1M1 REBLARAICRERERTHE

YNGRl YN [T
(@ UTARZE—=F+=-HA=+—RHFE

2013: (Continued) WEBRRZEE : (&)
Proportion of
ordinary
shares
Particulars of held by
Place of incorporation Nature of business issued share capital/ non
and and paid-up share Interest  controlling
Name kind of legal entity  place of operation capital/debt securities held interest
FER
MR R EBMER ERITRA/BHERE,/ BR S
£ EEERER T ERESHE FisEs SERLA
TRRBRESER AT The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB500,000 100% -
company
HE - RO B —HE AR#500,0007T
ERRERS(ER)BRAR The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB2,000,000 100% =
company
HE - BRAR EE—HE AR#2,000,0007
PEHERRREARAR The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB1,000,000 100% =
company
HE - BRAR BEE—HE AR#1,000,0007T
LEEZPEEERENAERLT  The PRC, limited liability Provision of business ~ RMB1,000,000 100% =
company information in
the PRC
B ARAA REFZEEA-—FE  AK¥1,000,0007T
HRERAESERERAA The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB500,000 100% =
company
FE - BRAR BEE—HE AK®500,0007T
MMNEREEERAR The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB1,000,000 100% =
company
FE - BRAR BE—HH AR#1,000,0007T
BNTEREERSERAA The PRC, limited liability ~Advertising in the PRC RMB1,500,000 100% -
company
HE - BRAR BE—HE AEH1,500,0007T
BMNERAARRERAR The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB5,000,000 100% =
company
HE - BRAR BEE—E ARHS5,000,0007T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND LOANTO 11 RMiBRARIZKRERERTHE

A SUBSIDIARY - COMPANY (Continued) YNET B /N [EE)
(@) The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December (@) UTAR=ZE—=F+-A=1+—H=xZ
2013: (Continued) MEBARLZEE : (&)
Proportion of
ordinary
shares
Particulars of held by
Place of incorporation Nature of business issued share capital/ non
and and paid-up share Interest  controlling
Name kind of legal entity  place of operation capital/debt securities held interest
FER
TR R EBHER BRTREBERE/ BRI
A% EEERER REWE ERESFE Fiksgs  ERRLA
EMmRBEEEERAR The PRC, limited liability ~Advertising in the PRC RMB500,000 100% -
company
hEl - BRAR EE-HE ARH500,0007C
AYMRERESERAR The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB2,000,000 100% =
company
hE - ARAR EE-H AB#2,000,0007
R MERFELER AR The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC  RMB1,000,000 100% -
company
hEl - BRAR EE&E-F AEH1,000,0007T
EEREFEEERAR The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB5,000,000 100% =
company
el BRAR EE&-h AR¥5,000,0007C
BESMNBEBERZERAT  The PRC, limited liability Provision of business ~ RMB500,000 100% =
company information in
the PRC
hE - ARAR REHEEEA T AKH#500,00070
TREEEERBARAR The PRC, limited liability Provision of websites ~ RMB500,000 100% =
company setting up services in
the PRC
el BRAR TR ER IR ARH500,0007C
—
mPSEMRESRMARAT  The PRC, limited liability Provision of business ~ RMB2,010,000 100% =
company information in the
PRC
hE - ARAR RUEMEER—F AR#2,010,0007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HP R

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND LOAN TO 11
A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Continued)

R ELR 2 RERERTHE
A R N [CE)

This company is newly incorporated during the year ended 31st
December 2013, two non-controlling shareholders contributed
RMB82,500 and RMB 122,500 respectively.

These companies are newly incorporated during the year.

@ HC International, Inc - Annual Report 2013

(a) The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December (@) UTARZZE—=F+=-A=+—HBHxZ
2013: (Continued) WEBRRZEE : (&)
Proportion of
ordinary
shares
Particulars of held by
Place of incorporation Nature of business issued share capital/ non
and and paid-up share Interest  controlling
Name kind of legal entity  place of operation capital/debt securities held interest
FER
BRI AR:E ) EBHER BRTREBERE/ B
s EEERER TEn ERESFE fisis  ERRLA
BR(RE)ETABERRE The PRC, limited liability Investment holdingin ~ RMB91,750,000 60% 40%
BRAR company the PRC
HE - BRAF REER-—HH AR#91,750,0007
EREEREHNRERR/ The PRC, limited liability  Investment of RMB166,670,000 53.1% 46.9%
company construction project
in the PRC
el BRAR TRRXRE - AEH166,670,0007T
s BITENESE FEKARAT  The PRC, limited liability  Project managementin ~ RMB500,000 59% 41%
company the PRC
il BRAR NEER-H ARH#500,0007T
MWIZESEERMER R The PRC, limited liability Investment holdingin ~ RMB10,000,000 100% =
company the PRC
hE - ARAR REER-HE ARH10,000,0007T
I RER= A ZEEEER] The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB1,000,000 100% -
company service in the PRC
el BRAR — ABH1,000,0007T
Shares held directly by the Company. 1 B BAATEERE -
These companies are indirectly held through Z 58 (K%) & Frai55E 2 ZEARERER(RE)ETHEAR
RAF]. RAIBERA -

3 RARRBE-_E—=F+-"A=1+—
Bt F M - 2 5 H MR IEE
RS A% BRE B AR 82,5007 e A R
122,5007T °

g AR RSN FE AR EMAKIL ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AR

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND LOAN TO

A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (continued)

(b) Loan to a subsidiary
The loan to a subsidiary is denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The carrying
value of this balance approximates its fair value.

() Material non-controlling interests
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for FERZ
AR BN E BB A7 that has non-controlling interests that are

material to the Group.

Summarised balance sheet

11 REBATRIZRERERTFHE
YN Bl /N [E))
(b) ERTFHEAT
BB AR SRBTIHE - A
W 2B RARSREE - REBRRZE
HEEELATEREE -

() EXFERES
BEAHLR BB L A2 BEERH
S

TXEFIGEE WAL E N = BEKRZIEE
BEmfB AR ERSBEHXEMIEER
RAZHBERBE -

EEREREE

2013 2012
=F-= —F=F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTTT

Current D

Assets BE 83,504 149,521

Liabilities aE (11,675) (290)
Net current assets e EEEE 71,829 149,321

Non-current FEMED

Assets BiE 416,784 248
Liabilities af& (291,487) =
Net non-current assets ERBEEFE 125,297 248
Net assets BEZFE 197,126 149,569

The non-controlling balance as at 31 December 2013 arised
from ERERXEWMIZEFR DA is RMB77,606,000 (2012:

RMB61,309,000).

R-ZE—Z=ZF+-_A=+—H8 ERZE
BREREEFRAREEFERLE
AR 77,606,0000(=F——F :
61,309,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND LOANTO 11 RMEBAGIZIRERERFHE

A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Continued) YNE IRl YN [E))

(c) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) () EBEXRFERERE)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with HEAHZR B L a2 HERH
material non-controlling interests (Continued) Z(&)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income FEBRRYE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREBT T

Revenue HERA - =
Loss before income tax BRPTIS BRI &R (2,710) (522)
Income tax credit FiiSHife 267 59
After-tax loss BREi1&IE1E (2,443) (463)
Other comprehensive loss Hih 2 HEEE - i
Total comprehensive loss THEHEBAE (2,443) (463)

Total comprehensive loss allocated to Non-
Controlling Interests

D= IEERR R
FHEIERTE (1,146) (190)

Dividends paid to Non-Controlling Interests

B I 2 AR - -

Summarised cash flows statement

RERBREE

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARET T

Cash flows from operating activities REXERCRERE
Cash used in operations KEERTAR S (15,412) (547)
Income tax paid EATFTiS L - -
Net cash used in operating activities REEFETRIR € F5E (15,412) (547)
Net cash used in investing activities K& RN FTAR SR (209,212) -
Net cash generated from in financing activities F& EENEL 2 I8 £ 558 155,671 150,000
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRASEEWEECRD)

cash equivalents 8N (68,953) 149,453
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts FUzBRe BeFEwk

at beginning of the year RITEX 149,453 =

Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents

W4 RIS SEWE R s 3 -

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

FRESRRSEEY 80,500 149,453

The information above is the amount before inter-company FaERREBAAR 2 FEHEATERE

eliminations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

12 INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 12 RBERT2RE

Set out below is an associate of the Group as at 31st December 2013.
The associate as listed below has share capital consisting solely of
ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group; the country of
incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business.

Nature of investment in an associate as at 31st December 2013

TYAREEAR-_ZE—=F+_A=+—RA2
B AT o NXATHIEE R E 2 RAR R B EE
TER - AAKBEERSA - Mk rsieE
MERIN AL EZ LI,

BE-T-=F+-A=1—0  RBEAT
ZREIE

Place of business/ % of
country of ownership Measurement
Name of entity incorporation interest  Nature of the relationship method
BT HEAERER
BREAE R A B X Aotk BRME FFEARN
Hui De Holding Co., Ltd. PRC 20  Note 1 Equity
ERERERAT H iEa -

Note 1: Hui De Holding Co., Ltd provides investment management and projects
investments in the PRC. Since this associate was incorporated in
December 2013 and had not commenced business, no amount has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

i1 BRERERAFANPEEHRUREEE
RIBBREXED - AREBE AR =%
—=F+ = AR - MARRBERE )
WEREHHRE ek AR ERM S o

Summarised financial information for an associate B AR BB EREE
Set out below are the summarised financial information for the associate X H G A Bl iR A BR 2 B 75 B R
which is accounted for using the equity method. o
Summarised balance sheet BEEBEXHE
2013 2012
2= —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEY 60,000 =
Total assets BEE 60,000 =
Share capital A& AR 60,000 =
Total equity EEm 60,000 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HP R

12 INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

12 REEERTRI 2B’ E @)
BAKRERE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R ARBFIT

Revenue SHE WA - -
Profit or loss i Ak E 1B - =
Other comprehensive income Efn2EmA - =
Total comprehensive income BLEERA - -
Dividends received from associate BB N R AR B, - =

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial
statements of the associate adjusted for differences in accounting
policies between the Group and the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

13 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 13 FEWEZ - 1#e  AZERE

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES ftt UL TR IR
Group Company
F&E /N

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E-——F —E-=F —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETTT AR¥T R AREFT

Trade and note receivables (note a) FEUBR N AR 1 (B Ea) 14,243 22,237 - -
Less: provision for impairment of W MR R ER A
trade receivables (2,822) (3,069) - -
Trade and note receivables — net FEMBR A N BN 1 — 558 11,421 19,168 - =
Deposits, prepayments and & - TBNFOE R E MR IE
other receivables (note b) (FftzEb) 111,093 97,178 178 184
122,514 116,346 178 184
Less: Non-current deposit, B IEREIES  BAFIEA
prepayments and other R E o pE N RIR
receivables (77,905) (54,510) - -
Current portion mEE D 44,609 61,836 178 184
(a) The Group generally grants a credit period of 90 days to customers. (a) AEE—RETHEFIOREER - &
The aging analysis of the gross trade and note receivables is as WERF R W RIB R 2 BREC DT T -
follows:
Group
rEH

2013 2012
—_E—-= —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBTTT

Current to 90 days BNEfZE90XK 7,181 14,498
91 to 180 days 91E180K 3,332 3,166
181 to 365 days 1812365k 1,816 3,009
Over 1 year Bl 1,914 1,564

14,243 22,237
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HP R

13 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(@) (Continued)
The carrying amounts of trade and note receivables approximate
their fair values.

Balances are denominated in RMB and there is no concentration of
credit risk with respect to trade and note receivables as the Group
has a large number of customers nationally dispersed.

The Group has recognised a loss of approximately RMB2,533,000
for the impairment of its trade and note receivables during the year
ended 31st December 2013 (2012: RMB1,015,000).

As at 31st December 2013, trade and note receivables of
approximately RMB2,822,000 (2012: RMB3,069,000) were
impaired and have been provided for. The individually impaired
receivables mainly represent sales made to customers which have
remained long overdue.

As at 31st December 2013, trade and note receivables of
approximately RMB4,240,000 (2012: RMB4,670,000) were past
due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The
aging analysis of these trade and note receivables is as follows:

13 BWERR - e - BAAFUERHE
th PE WL R I ()

(a)

(&)
R B 0 B R R ) AR (B B L N HE
BE -

MEUARREE - AR AEEHEARS
BEE AR B - AR E 2 EER
AREEEEREEEETRER -

BE_T—=F+-A=+—HILFE
AR E B R AR N U SR (B S
BHARE2,533,0007T(=ZFE——4F : A
R #1,015,0007T) °

R-ZE—=F+-_A=+—8  EKE
AR EWEER L ARKE2,822,00070(=F
——F : AR¥3,069,0007T) B R{EL 1
B o @RI ENEUGIBEEZRERER
SHEMRARME -

RZEBE-—=F+=-A=+—H - BYI
B FEWEE B 4 AR #4,240,0007T (= F
——% : AR¥4,670,0007T) AEEAER
BE - ZERFEZZBELIRFPAR W
ST HII B R AR o % B IRIIR TR N B
WERE 2 BRI DITIAT

2013 2012
=F-= —F=F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F ARBTTT

91 to 180 days 91&E 180K 3,332 3,166
181 to 365 days 1812365k 908 1,504
4,240 4,670
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AR

13 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(a) (Continued)
Movements in the provision for impairment of trade and note
receivables are as follows:

13 BUWERR - #e  ACGFERAE
b PE WL FR I8 ()

(a)

(&)
R IR R BRI R EREE B
T

2013 2012
== —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREETTT

At beginning of the year F5) 3,069 3,346
Impairment of receivables JEMGRIE R (B 2,533 1,015
Write off for impaired receivables FEWSRIE R E 55 (2,780) (1,292)
At end of the year FR 2,822 3,069

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have
been included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally
written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional
cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not include
a provision for impairment of other receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair values of trade and note receivables disclosed above. The
Group did not hold any collateral as security.

BRI AR YIAR A I8 R MR E AT A
Bt lERA - st ABBRZ TR~
A TREA A IR [ BRI NR S Ry -

R M B 0 L At B WROR 2 B AR I 9
EEEEMBRFRZRERE -

RifE BB RS ERRR T LXK E

FEBER R R R IE 2 A THE - AREEIL
ERB R R IEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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13 TRADE RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS,

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(b) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

13 BWERR - e - BAAFUERHE
b FE U FRIE ()

ZE  ANREREERKE

Group Company
REE b /N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E2-=F —T——F —E-=F —ER——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARET T AR¥TR AREF T
Short-term deposits RHEe 8,140 6,436 - =
Long-term deposits i 2,905 1,443 - =
Short-term prepayments ySA= RN O 3,486 7,921 - =
Long-term prepayments (Note (i) R HBTE S FOE (FTRE() 44,400 21,600 - -
Other receivables: H o FEUGKRIE
— Short-term from former associated ~ — fEURRIEE N a2
company (Note (ii)) 55 HA R TE (P 3EGi)) 894 2,768 - =
— Short-term others (Note (i) — 5 HAE At (B (i) 20,668 25,543 178 184
— Loan to employees (Note (iv)) —ERTEE (M) 30,600 31,467 - -
111,093 97,178 178 184
The fair values are as follows: BEAFENT :
Deposits b 11,045 7,879 - =
Prepayments ERHIE 47,886 29,521 - -
Other receivables H At EURIR 52,162 59,778 178 184
111,093 97,178 178 184
Denominated in; PATGI EHEETHE
HK dollars BT 30,600 31,651 178 184
RMB NG 80,493 65,527 - -
111,093 97,178 178 184
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

13 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 13 FEWEZ - 1#e  AZERE

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(b) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Note (i): This amount represents prepayment for purchase of property,

plant and equipment and acquisition of land use rights. Balance
included an amount of RMB21,600,000 (31st December 2012:
RMB21,600,000) which represented payment made for the
acquisition of certain land use rights of which the transfer of
land use rights is subject to final approval from the related
government authorities.

Note (ii): ~ This amount represents receivable balances for provision of
data library services from the former associated company, 1t
B EaRKEREMSE S7EAABRAR], which was disposed of in
2011.

Note (iii):  This amount includes loan and interest receivable from a
private company incorporated in the PRC amounting to
RMB20,668,000 (2012: RMB25,543,000). The borrower is
one of the new shareholders of the disposed market research
and analysis business who is an independent third party of the
Group. The loan bears an interest at 8% per annum and had
been settled in 2014 January.

Note (iv):  Employee Share Scheme

On 21st December 2012, the Group granted loans to several
employees of the Group for the sole purpose of purchase of
shares of the Group at market price. The loans will mature
on 21st December 2015, whereby bear interest at a rate of
5% per annum. The loans are denominated in HK dollars. The
fair values of the loans to employees are approximate to their
carrying values.

14 DIRECT SELLING COSTS - GROUP

Upon the receipt of subscription revenue from third party customers,
the Group is obligated to pay sales commissions and agency fees to the
salespersons and agents. The subscription revenue are initially deferred
and recongised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
in the period during which the services are rendered. Accordingly, the
commissions and agency fees, which are directly attributable to earning
from such subscription revenue during the service period, are deferred
and recognized, in employees benefit expense (Note 28) and direct
expenses of on-line services (Note 27), respectively, of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income throughout the same period.

14

b FE UK FRIE (1)

(b) #&& - ERFERHEMERRE

FHEE() hEBEARBEANE  BER
REARWE T ERAEZE
NHRIE - RERERKES T
T EAEED ZARARE
21,600,000t (=& — —F+ =
A=+—8 : AR%21,600,000
JT) ¢ MEEERE 4 b AR 540
BB S AU -

MiEEG) : e BARREBERERS EK
A E AR RE QKBTS
ERBAERAR(ENR=F——
FHE)ZERBK

MisEGi) : S EREREKR— MR R ER
B2 FAA R R B R RF B o AN
TEAARY20,668,0007T(=F
— =% : AR¥25,543,0007T) °
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15 AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY - 15

16

GROUP

PER RS A T30 — AR

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R ARBFIT

Amount due from a related company: WA A RFRIA ¢

EREREZREREABRAT

A RBRERESHENR

1,622 1,604

The amount due from a related company arose from the normal course
of business and is denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. This related party has no default history. The

carrying value of this balance approximates its fair value.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

W BERSE R R FURTI N A B E BB EL -
WAARBE - REER  RERERFE
AR o XA A LI HERGRRDER o AR RERFRAER
EEEENFERS °

16 BERBEEEY
Group Company
Gz 3 AR

2013
—E—=

RMB’000

2012 2013 2012
—E-——F —E-= —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T ARETIT AR%T AREF T
Cash at bank and on hand BITRENFEES 262,799 278,552 5 5
Fixed deposits TE BT 762,290 144,000 - =
1,025,089 422,552 5 5

Denominated in; ATF EHEHE -
- Hong Kong Dollars -8 15,310 7,794 - -
- RMB — AR 1,007,492 412,749 - -
- USD —%7T 2,287 2,009 5 5
1,025,089 422,552 5 5

The fixed deposits were highly liquid with original maturities of three
months or less. As at 31st December 2013, cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB599,061,000 (2012: RMB404,903,000) of the
Group were denominated in Renminbi and deposited with banks in the
PRC. The conversion of the Renminbi denominated balance into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange

control promulgated by the PRC government.

HC International, Inc - Annual Report 2013
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B AR

16

17

18

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the
consolidated cash flow statement:

16

HERBESEEY )
RABRSHBEAYHSRESSEYNT -

Group

AEE
2013 2012
—EB-—=F —E—CF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTFTT

Cash and bank balances B RiRI TR

1,025,089 422,552

DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The deferred government grants represents government grants received
for the year ended 31st December 2013.

The grants are to subsidise the Group for the rental discount that the
Group will provide to the prospective tenants of the B2B household
electrical appliances business exhibition centre in Shunde of Guangzhou,
and to subsidise the Group to purchase of fixed assets for the Group's
expansion.

The conditions attached to these grants would be satisfied after 31st
December 2014.

17

A S A o8 B
BERFRYERBE-_F—=4+=5
=+— AL F KR 2 BB -

AEEBREMNIEE ZB2BRERES L 2B
HPREMEESHTH - MM DA URZES
I ALRE - R AKEBEEEEEN
VSRS

B WM R B —mE+= A
=+—BRER -

SHARE CAPITAL 18 |RA

Number of
ordinary shares Par value
ZEREE HE
RMB’000
AREET T
At 1st January 2012 WZZE——F—H—H 546,248,645 56,884
Exercise of share options (nkdi-libe 15,803,104 1,283
At 31st December 2012 NW-ZE——F+=-_A=+—H 562,051,749 58,167
Issuance of new shares BEITHR D 72,000,000 5,659
Exercise of share options 1T R I 25,527,869 2,039
At 31st December 2013 N-ZE—=F+=-_A=+—H 659,579,618 65,865

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 1,000,000,000 shares
(2012: 1,000,000,000 shares) with a par value of HK$0.1 per share
(2012: HK$0.1 per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

A E T @A 48 20 41,000,000,0000 (= FE——
£ :1,000,000,000%) &R EE01BT(ZF
——F : GREEIEIT)ZRD c FIEEE
TRDEBHE -

smEaRaa- 03555 Q)
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18 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Share options

Pursuant to a written resolution of the shareholders of the Company
dated 30th November 2003, a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. Pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme, the board of directors is authorised to grant options to any
directors or employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
subscribe for shares in the Company at prices to be determined by the
board of directors in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

During the year ended 31st December 2004, a total of 26,000,000 share
options were granted to two executive directors and certain employees
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, of which 7,850,000, 9,350,000,
1,080,000, 581,000, 265,000, 245,000, 286,000 and 32,000 share
options were lapsed during the year ended 31st December 2005, 2007,
2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively. During the year
ended 31st December 2013, 4,915,000 share options were exercised.

The grantees can exercise these options at an exercise price of HK$2.40
per share in a ten-year period starting from the expiry of twelve months
from the date of the granting of options, being 18 February 2004.
Commencing from the first, second and third anniversaries of the Offer
Date, the relevant grantee may exercise options up to 33.3%, 66.6%
and 100% respectively.

During the year ended 31st December 2006, a total of 10,000,000 share
options were granted to one executive Director and certain employees
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, of which 2,460,000, 2,908,000,
346,000, 644,000, 274,000 and 134,000 share options were lapsed
during the year ended 31st December 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011
and 2012 respectively. During the year ended 31st December 2012
and 2013, 366,000 and 1,024,000 share options were exercised. The
grantees can exercise 100% of these options at an exercise price of
HK$1.49 per share in ten years period starting from the expiry of twelve
months from the date of the granting of options, being 23rd June 2006.

@ HC International, Inc - Annual Report 2013
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fBE
BREARBDBRRR_ZBZE=F+—HA=1tHZ
EERFHER - AR BRN—REBER 8 ([
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EEMERRBEARRRD -
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1% ~ 9,350,0001% ~ 1,080,0001% * 581,0001% -
265,0001% ~ 245,000 * 286,00013 32,000
NERECOIRBEE_ZTTHF - —TTt
F —TTNF ZZEThF - _T-TF -
—T——F - ZT——FRZT—=%F+=A
=+ BLEFERARK REBE=Z—=F
+=—A=+—RL%EFE 4,915,000 BRHED
17f8 -

ARATRBRERL BRI ZETOFE A
+AB)ET=@EAEMABZ TEA - Bk
240 TR TEBITEZSRARE - KITE A
HrE— FREZRAFR  FEFEAR
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TE o
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ERERRAESTE] - & 3£10,000,00017 BEREHE B %
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274,00019 % 134,000 B EERBE-Z
THE ZEENE - ZTTHhE T —
F ZE——FRZT—=F+=-A=1—
LEFEERKXA - REE=ZT——FR=-F—
FHZA=+—HIEFE ' BE171£366,00017
%2.1,024,00019 B A4 - 7¥<&ATE’\@%H§%&&
BH(AI —ZEZRFENA - +=H)Est+=

RIEBWRARZTHR - Lxﬂx1.49,%7cﬁ’m1§
B1T{E100% 2 BEAYHE -

[1] m <4



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

18 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 18 W& (m)

Share options (Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2007, a total of 23,000,000 share
options were granted to two executive Directors and certain employees
pursuant to Share Option Scheme, of which 10,267,000, 1,035,000,
2,403,000, and 668,000 share options were lapsed during the year
ended 31st December 2008, 2009, 2010, and 2011 respectively. During
the year ended 31st December 2012 and 2013, 1,376,000 and 1,621,000
share options were exercised. The grantees can exercise these options
at an exercise price of HK$1.24 per share in ten years period starting
from the expiry of twelve months from the date of the granting of
options, being 11th July 2007. Commencing from the first and second
anniversaries of the Offer Date, the relevant grantee may exercise
options up to 50% and 100% respectively.

During the year ended 31st December 2008, a total of 14,600,000 share
options were granted to one executive director and certain employees
pursuant to Share Option Scheme, of which 500,000, 1,180,000
and 120,000 share options were lapsed during the year ended 31st
December 2009, 2010 and 2011 respectively. During the year ended
31st December 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013, 700,000, 2,300,000,
2,600,000 and 3,000,000 share options were exercised. The grantees
can exercise these options at an exercise price of HK$0.604 per share in
ten years period starting from the expiry of twelve months from the date
of the granting of options, being 29th September 2008. Commencing
from the first anniversary of the Offer Date, the relevant grantee may
exercise options 100%.

During the year ended 31st December 2010, a total of 33,800,000
share options were granted to one executive Director and certain
employees pursuant to Share Option Scheme, of which 700,000,
400,000 and 800,000 share options were lapsed during the year ended
31st December 2010, 2011 and 2012 respectively. During the year
ended 31st December 2011, 2012 and 2013, 1,000,000, 5,550,000 and
9,482,000 share options were exercised. The granters can exercise these
options at an exercise price of HK$0.82 per share in ten years period
starting from the expiry of twelve months from the date of the granting
of options, being 7th April 2010. Commencing from the first and second
anniversaries of the date of grant, the relevant grantee may exercise
options up to 50% and 100% respectively.

B (E
REBE_TT+LF+_A=+—"HILFE "
1595 B IR #E 5T &) - A ££23,000,000 19 B8 A%
BEETHERTESRBHLEL  MEF
10,267,000 15 1,035,000 13 - 2,403,000 15
668,000 EBREENEBEE—_TTNE » =
TENF T ZEER-_F——F+=A
=t+t—HEFEARS - REE_ZT——FKk
—T—=Ff+_A=+—HBLFE  BITE
1,376,0001% %.1,621,00017 B B #E o A& A A]
RERERH B —_EE+FE+A+—H)
Bt —@EAERFAGZ TR - LLER1.24
PEITRITEETEXSERE - #REBAHZ
FE-REBEFR BEABRARZAIH AT
#50% 5 100% 2 B A1 ©

REBE-_ZENFE+-_A=+—HIEE 1
ERBARET S - A& 3£14,600,00010 BB ED 1%
F—BWITEB RIS E I - MEF 500,000
% ~ 1,180,000 {3 K 120,000 {5 & B% # 2 1
HE_ZZNGF  —Z—ZFR_FT——F
+_A=1+—BLEFEREXK - HE-_ZT—F
F - —T——F B _FHER_T—=F
+ZA=+—RHIEFE ' E171£700,00015
2,300,0001% + 2,600,00017 K 3,000,00017 & i
B o AEATRERERHBBHEIZTTNE
hAZThAR)BTZ@AERMABZTF
A - LAEAR0.604 8 THTTEETFEZZRER
o IR AHZE—BFE  BEARZEAR
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9,482,00017 B AR # - FIRX AT REERER
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18 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 18 BA& ()

Share options (Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2011, a total of 3,000,000 share
options were granted to certain employees pursuant to share option
scheme, of which 100,000, 100,000 and 50,000 share options were
lapsed during the year ended 31st December 2011, 2012 and 2013.
During the year ended 31st December 2012 and 2013, 800,000 and
1,670,000 of such were exercised. The granters can exercise these
options at an exercise price of HK$1.108 per share in ten years period
starting from the expiry of twelve months from the date of the granting
of options, being 28th March 2011. Commencing from the first and
second anniversaries of the date of grant, the relevant grantee may
exercise options up to 50% and 100% respectively.

On 3rd April 2013, a total of 1,500,000 share options were granted to
an employee pursuant to share option scheme. The grantee can exercise
these options at an exercise price of HK$4.402 per share in ten years
period starting from the expiry of twelve months from the date of the
granting of options, being 3rd April 2013. Commencing from the first
anniversaries of the date of grant, the relevant grantees may exercise
options up to 20% and gradually up to 100% at the fifth anniversary of
the date of grant. During the year ended 31st December 2013, no share
options were exercised.

On 18th November 2013, a total of 10,000,000 share options were
granted to certain employees pursuant to share option scheme. The
granters can exercise these options at an exercise price of HK$9.84
per share in ten years period starting from the expiry of twelve months
from the date of the granting of options, being 18th November 2013.
Commencing from the first anniversaries of the date of grant, the
relevant grantees may exercise options up to 10% and gradually up
to 100% at the fifth anniversary of the date of grant. During the year
ended 31st December 2013, no share options were exercised.
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18 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 18

Share options (Continued)
The assumptions for revaluation of fair value of share options are as

& NE))
Y2 100
E AR A TEFAABRET -

follows:
29th 18th
23rd June 11thJuly  September 7th April  28th March 3rd April  November
2006 2007 2008 2010 2011 2013 2013
ZEERE CEBEE  -BEN\f CB-BF CZB-—-f C-B-ZF CB-=%
~A=+=R tAt+-B ARA=ThA MAtR =ZA=tNA ME=H +-AtNAH
Exercise price (in HK dollar) 11E(ET) 149 124 0.604 0.82 1108 4.40 9.84
Fair value of the options (in RIB) BREATE(ARE) 3919000 9390000 2756000 12,527,000 1,377,000 3,754,000 50,125,000
Risk free interest rate (in %) EEBRFIR(%) 4911 4757 3.133 2.865 2.820 111 1915
Expected life (in years) B EH(F) 3255 2462 3848 3459 3849 9196 4779
Volatility (in %) JREH(%) 348 49 722 798 774 75 75
Expected dividend per share (cents) EHEREE (D) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At the working date before options were granted, 22nd June 2006, REREEREYR Y TER » —ESNEXA
10th July 2007, 26th September 2008, 6th April 2010, 25th March -—+—-8- :;ﬁftfﬁtﬁ]+5 :gg/\¢

2011, 2nd April 2013 and 15th November 2013, the market value per
share was HK$1.45, HK$1.24, HK$0.55, HK$0.82, HK$1.1, HK$4.3 and
HK$9.23 respectively.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their
exercise prices are as follows:

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

NAZ+AH - ZZE—ZFFMANAH
——¢5ﬁ1+£5~:?—iimﬂzﬁ
k=Z—=F+—A+HA  BERMEIHA
1.45%8 7T ~ 1.24% 7T ~ 0.55/8 7T ~ 0.82 7T »
11%87T ~ 4387 Kk9.2387T °

ATERBBEHE RITREZESHNT

() BARRFIEREIBRE &

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—fF
Exercise Exercise
price in HK$ Share price in HK$ Share
Expiry date per share options per share options
BRET BB
28R R fB R 1668 BiiE
At Tst January 0.44 4,036,016 0.44 9,147,120
R—HA—H
Lapsed and Exercised 0.44 (4,036,016) 0.44 (5,111,104)
BRBRITE
At 31st December 17th December 2013 0.44 - 0.44 4,036,016
R+=A=+—H “Z-=F+-A++H

smaaRan- 03555 QD)
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18 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Share options (Continued)
(i)~ Share Option Scheme

18 BA& )
B AR (45
(i) FEEEEE

PIVE] 2012
Shi== —T——F
Exercise Exercise
price in HK$ Share price in HK$ Share
Expiry date per share options per share options
BRET BB
BI5A 768 BRE 111618 Bk
At 1st January 2.40 6,343,000 2.40 6,629,000
R—H—H 1.49 2,868,000 1.49 3,368,000
1.24 6,991,000 1.24 8,367,000
0.604 7,200,000 0.604 9,800,000
0.82 25,350,000 0.82 31,700,000
1.108 2,000,000 1.108 2,900,000
Granted 240 - 2.40 -
B 1.49 - 1.49 =
1.24 - 1.24 -
0.604 - 0.604 -
0.82 - 0.82 -
1.108 - 1.108 -
4.402 1,500,000 4.402 -
9.84 10,000,000 9.84 -
Lapsed and exercised 2.40 (4,947,000) 2.40 (286,000)
BEREITE 149 (1,024,000) 149 (500,000)
1.24 (1,621,000) 1.24 (1,376,000)
0.604 (3,000,000) 0.604 (2,600,000)
0.82 (9,482,000) 0.82 (6,350,000)
1.108 (1,720,000) 1.108 (900,000)
4.402 - 4.402 -
9.84 - 9.84 -
At 31st December 18th February 2014 240 1,396,000 2.40 6,343,000
R+ZA=1+—H “T-EEZRATNH
23rd June 2016 1.49 1,844,000 1.49 2,868,000
“E—"ERAZT=H
11th July 2017 1.24 5,370,000 1.24 6,991,000
“T—+FtAT—H
29th September 2018 0.604 4,200,000 0.604 7,200,000

“Z-\ENAZTNA
7th April 2020
“Z-ZEMALH
27th march 2021
“E-—F=A=t+H
3rd April 2023
“Z-=FA=H
18th November 2023
“ZZ=5+—A1+\R

0.82 15,868,000

1.108 280,000

4.402 1,500,000

9.84 10,000,000

0.82 25,350,000

1.108 2,000,000
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18 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Share Award Scheme

On 23rd November 2011 and pursuant to the Share Award Scheme,
the Board resolved to grant an aggregate of 24,181,000 shares to 72
selected employees (including an executive director of the Company).

On 14th June 2012, the Board resolved to grant Lee Wee Ong, an
executive director of the Company, 3,000,000 shares on 1st July 2012,
subjected to a vesting period of 36 months.

On 20th August 2012, the shareholders resolved to grant Guo Jiang, an
executive director of the Company, 16,700,000 shares on 20th August
2012, subjected to a vesting period of 72 months.

As at 31st December 2013, 42,574,000 shares (31st December 2012:
24,118,000 Shares) had been purchased by the trustee as awarded
shares pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme. The awarded
shares will be held by the trustee in accordance with the rules of the
Share Award Scheme and the relevant trust period.

The awarded shares are subject to vesting periods from 6 months to 72
months.

The following table represents the movements for number of shares
under the Share Award Scheme for the year ended 31st December
2013.

18 BA& (%)

g ]

R-ZE——&+— A= += B WRERD EZE
FTE > BEESRFMNMEHERERETAL
24,181,0000% @ BIEARNR—BHITES ©

R-ZZT——FxA+HWA EFERZN=
T——F+tA—HRAAXRRABITE ELee Wee
Ong% 4 53,000,000 - 2B H8 436183 -

RZZE—ZFNAZ+H BRERERZZ
——FN\AZTHRARRRTESRHIRT
16,700,0000% - SFEBHART72MEAR -

BHE_ZT—=F6+_"A=+—08 ' IEARE
A&t £EE) 5T &) 2 5K B 42,574,000k (=F
——F+=HA=+—H : 24,118,000/ ) tE & &
Bk D o ZEREIRMD IS AT AREBRN 52
Ehat B RN BRI FEHARE A -

ZERBRO N EBERR6EAZT2(EA -

TRIITFR R BN BE=E —=F =
A=+—BILFERGREZBER -

Number of shares

gt 2¢=]
As at 1st January 2012 R-ZE——F—HF—H 17,654,000
Shares purchased from the market RmiGEEERRD 6,464,000
Shares vested during the year rEEEHEBRK (844,663)
As at 31st December 2012 R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H 23,273,337
As at 1st January 2013 N-E—=%—HF—H 23,273,337
Shares purchased from the market R EEERGD 18,456,000
Shares vested during the year rEEEHEBRN (6,980,002)
As at 31st December 2013 RZTE—=F+=-_HA=+—H 34,749,335
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18 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 18 IR @)
Share Award Scheme (Continued) IR1p SR BT &I(45)
The following is a summary of the shares granted, vested and lapsed AR BRI GD SEEET S AR AR FEE B
during the year since the set up of the Share Award Scheme: o BE R RNEBEBIE

Number of shares

ROEE
(in thousand unit)
(Fr%)
2012
—E——F
As at 1st January R—H—H 43,036 24,181
Granted during the year REEEET - 19,700
Shares lapsed e ) - =
Shares vested SERG (6,980) (845)
Allocated but not vested EHEEREE 36,056 43,036
The Group has adopted the requirements under HKFRS 2 to account for AEEDRMNBEASVBREERNFE25 2]
the equity compensation expenses of the shares granted at the date of E - REHBEERATERERHERANR -

grant at fair value.
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B AR

19 OTHER RESERVES 19 Htif#E
Group
158
Shares held
Share-based Share for share
Share Capital Other Merger compensation redemption  Exchange reward
premium reserve  reserves reserve  reserves reserve Reserve scheme Total
HRBRER i BELHE |
ROEE  EARf  HMBE  GHREE  ZEERE  BORE  EXRE  FERG it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTE  ARETR  ARETT ARETn  ARBTr ARETR ARETn  ARETT  ARETR
At 1st January 2012 RZE-—F-f—H 197,325 987 (48,474) 108,830 43733 496 (10,178) (22,234) 270,485
Share based compensation - MRS 2 (E-
value of employee senices — EERIEE - - - 8,766 - - = 8766
Exercise of share options TERRE 8,072 - - - - - - 8,072
Currency tranlation difference  S%(E 3 £2 - - - - - 37 - 37
Shares purchased under share  RIER 1) EEzFEIE A
award scheme &t _ - _ _ _ N (10,447) (10,447)
Vesting of awarded shares ~ FEZERN - - - (1,033) - - 1,033 -
Changes in ownership interest 1AM E AR EAEIER
in subsiciaries without change  E3h{B3
of control bk = - (1,144) = - - - (1,144)
At 315t December 2012 RZE-——F
+-A=1+-A 205,397 987 (49,618) 108,830 51,466 496 (10,141) (31,648) 275,769
At 1st January 2013 R=F-Z%-A-A 205,397 987 (49,618) 108,830 51,466 496 (10,141) (31,648) 275,769
Share based compensation- BRI 2 BE-(EE
value of employee senvices IR E(E - - - 22,566 - - = 22,566
Issuance of new shares BTHRA 402,274 - - - - - - 402,274
Exercise of share options TEBRE 20,847 - - - - - - 20,847
Currency trandlation difference  EXEH 22 = = = - - (2,69) - (2,69)
Shares purchased under share R BT EIE A
award scheme & - - - - - - (84,650) (84,650)
Vesting of awarded shares SERERN 4751 - - (13,235) - - 8,484 -
Changes in ownership interest B A B AERESS
in subsidlaries without change ~ £EHE &%
of control g - - 32,125 - - - - 32,125
At 315t Decerber 2013 RZF-=F
+-A=1+-H 633,269 987 (17493) 108,830 60,797 496 (1283%3) (107,814) 666,239

PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net
profit to a subsidiary reserve fund until such fund reaches 50% of the
companies’ registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised,
upon approval of relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to
increase registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital.
As at 31st December 2013, retained earnings comprise statutory reserve
fund amounted to RMB23,727,000 (2012: RMB7,707,000).

FERRINBAEB ARG Z10% D EEHRBE A
Az kRS EEZREHESERARFMER
250% c EERBLLEEBRE BHERATRAR
POH R BEEEMA R ZEMER «
FEeREAEZFNARFEMERZ25%KF ©
MR-ZE—=%F+_A=+—0 BEWxEE
EEREES ARE23,727,000L( =T — =4 :
AER#E7,707,0007T) °
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19 OTHER RESERVES (Continued) 19 HfbfEf o
Company
£AF
Shares held
Share-based Share for share
Share compensation  redemption Exchange reward Accumulated
premium reserves reserve Reserve scheme Total losses
WRARER k& Re%RR:E
RiEE  cHBEREE ROk EiffE it Chl it ER

RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBOOO  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
ARETL  ARETT  ARETRT  ARETL  ARBTL  ARETR  ARETR

At 1st January 2012 RZE——5—F—H 197,325 40,379 4% (275) (22,234) 215,691 (41,997)
Loss for the year rEEFE = = = = = = (9.494)
Share based compensation DRHZ A RE-ES

- value of employee services TR - 8,766 - - - 8,766 -
Exercise of share options TEBRE 8,072 - - - - 8,072 -
Currency translation difference EHENZR - - - 15 - 15 -
Shares purchased for share BT REEYN

award scheme - - - - (10,447) (10,447) -
Vest of awarded shares BERBRN - (1,033) - - 1,033 - -
At 31st December 2012 W-E-—%#+-A=1-H 205,397 48112 49 (260) (31,648) 222,097 (51,491)
At 1st January 2013 R_E-=F-f—-H 205,397 43112 4% (260) (31,648) 222,097 (51,491)
Loss for the year rEEFE = = = = = = (23,642)
Share based compensation PRGBS m(E

- value of employee services -[EEMBEE - 22,566 - = = 22,566 =
Issuance of new shares BTHRG 402,274 - - - = 402,274 =
Exercise of share options TERkE 20,847 - - - - 20,847 -
Currency translation difference EHENEE - - - (224) - (224) -
Shares purchased for share B REEYN

award scheme - - - - (84,650) (84,650) -
Vest of awarded shares BRERRA 4,751 (13,235) - = 8,484 = =
At 31st December 2013 WZE-=F+-A=1+-H 633,269 57,443 49 (484) (107,814) 582,910 (75,133)
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20 TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING 20 EEFiZERERZRS

INTERESTS

On 20th December 2013, a new shareholder injected capital amounting
to RMB50,000,000 into ERZHEKEMIZE FRAF], a non-wholly-
owned controlling subsidiary of the Group. The new shareholder
subscribes 10% of the equity interest. After this transaction, the equity
interest in ERZBRXEHKXEAGR A7) has diluted from 59% to
53.1%.

The carrying amount of the non-controlling interests disposed of and
consideration received in excess of carrying value recognised within
equity as a result of the transaction with non-controlling interests were as
follows:

RZT—=F+-A=+H8  —&HBREAK
SEMEIFZEERMNBRARERSERERHR
KERRRFETE ARYS50,000,0007T © A&
RBEI10%RARER - kR HI1E - REREIR
RERREBR AR ZMARERE B59%HE
£53.1% °

BN EIFER R RETTR S - T & IEE AR
@R EWREZ REERHERER AR R
E{E - ZHIT

2013

—EB—=F

RMB’000

AR%TR

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests disposed P & IR R i o 2 BRTEI (B 17,875

Consideration received from the non-controlling interests & U IEFERRAEZR B (50,000)
Consideration received in excess of carrying value REZHNERBHEREZEMNRE

recognised within equity (32,125)

On 16th February 2012, the Group acquired an additional 30% of
the issued and paid-up share capital in Jt REH L ERIKERA
Al, a subsidiary of the Group, from a non-controlling shareholder,
increasing the percent of effective interest held from 70% to 100%. The
acquisition cost amounted to approximately RMB148,000.

On 6th December 2012, the Group acquired an additional 8% of the
issued and paid-up share capital in ERZRREBIHIKEER AR, a
subsidiary of the Group, from a non-controlling shareholder, increasing
the percent of effective interest held from 51% to 59%. The acquisition
cost amounted to approximately RMB13,000,000.

The carrying amounts of the non-controlling interests acquired and
consideration paid in excess of carrying value recognised within equity as
a result of the transaction with non-controlling interests were as follows:

RZE——F—A+/"8 ' AEBEREZERE
RUNBAEEMNBARILREEELHREEAR
N AIEEIMEIE30% B 31T REUR IR - R
BEEERHT70%EE100% o WHEKAHAR
#5148,0007T ©

M-Z——F+=AXE  AEERIFERR
REBAEEHNBARERERXEMIRESR
RAFIREIISNEEHTRARKA - EAHFE
BRREER 51 %IEE59% WK AL B AR
13,000,0007T, °

BN EIEER R RETTR S - PTURE IR AR
@R ENREZREERH AR AR R
FE{E - ZEIT

2012

—T——F

RMB’'000

ARBFIT

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired FRUC B SRR AR i 25 2 AR TED (B 12,004

Consideration paid for the non-controlling interests BT SEERERA(E (13,148)
Consideration paid in excess of carrying value recognised P25 N FERHR HBEE(E Y 2B

within equity (1,144)
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21 FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS 21 BMEHEST
2013 2012
—E—=F e
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARBFIT
Finance lease obligations MEREEMT
Non-current R 1,323 2,491
Current TeE 759 1,671
Total finance lease obligations mEHEETAE 2,082 4,162
2013 2012
—EB—-= —T——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Gross finance lease liabilities — minimum wREHEaE -—RERENK
lease payments
No later than 1 year TER—F 995 1,814
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years ER—FETNERASE 1,465 3,246
Future finance charges on finance leases BEME 2 R RENE 2 0 (378) (898)
Present value of finance lease liabilities mMERAEEERE 2,082 4,162
The present value of finance lease liabilities BmEHEEEREANT :
is as follows:
No later than 1 year TER—F 759 1,671
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years EBR—FETERAF 1,323 2,491
2,082 4,162

The fair values of the finance lease obligations equal their carrying
amounts. The carrying amounts of the finance lease obligations are
denominated in RMB. The effective interest rates for the finance lease
obligations ranges from 1.20% to 1.43% per month.
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B AR

22 TRADE PAYABLES, DEFERRED REVENUE AND 22 FE{IBRFR - IEEW A UK EGTE

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES

PR B Ao A RIE
Group Company
F&EE N

2013 2012 2013 2012

—E—=F —E-——F —E-=F —E——F

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETTT AR¥T ARBETF T

Trade payables (a) 2,622 2,825 - -
Deferred revenue 502,734 337,417 - -
Accrued expenses and other payables  fEHE A & H (b E {708 64,643 33,663 547 451
569,999 373,905 547 451

(@) The aging analysis of trade payables is as follows:

(a)

FERBRFRZ SR DATAN T

2013 2012
—_E—= —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT

Current to 90 days BNEAZ= 90X 1,138 952
91 to 180 days 91ZE 180K 458 1,126
181 to 365 days 181E 365K 484 313
Over 1 year BiE—F 542 434

2,622 2,825
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B HP R

23 BORROWINGS 23 B8
2013 2012
—E—=fF e
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Non-current portion: FEBNER
Bank borrowings RITEE 24,838 -
Other borrowings HEE 77,649 =
102,487 =
Current portion: BNER :
Other borrowings HinfgE 11,184 =
113,671 =
Movements in borrowings is analysed as follows: BEZEEHHITHT
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETTT

Opening amount 1st January 2013 R-E—=F—-A—-AzHyEHE - =
Additions of borrowings MIGEE 201,840 =
Repayments of borrowings BEREE (88,169) =
Closing amount as at 31st December 2013 R-B—=%F+=-A=+—HZ2

MAREH 113,671 =

Bank borrowings mature until 10th May 2017 and bear interest rate of
6.8% annually. The bank borrowings are secured by land use rights,
investment properties and properties under development amounting to
RMB416,537,000.

Other borrowings are provided by the non-controlling shareholders of
a subsidiary of the Group for the funding of the development of a B2B
household electrical appliances business exhibition centre in Shunde of
Guangzhou. The borrowings are un-secured, and bear average interest
of 7.8% per annum. The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate
their fair values and are denominated in RMB.
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BTSRRI TE

23

24

BORROWINGS (Continued) 23 BEuwm
As at 31st December 2013, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as R-E—=F+-"A=+—H AE£BEEEE
follows: BEIATE ¢
RMB’000
AREET T
Within 1 year —FR 11,184
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMFN 77,649
Between 2 and 5 years MEERFN 24,838
113,671
As at 31st December 2013, the Group has undrawn banking facilities of RZE—=F+_A=+—H  XEEBEXE
RMB255,162,000 that are expired beyond one year (2012: Nil). EERTT R A £ A R#255,162,0007C * @&
R—FRIBH(ZE—Z=F: &) -
DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP 24 EEFFBH —XEH
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a EEETEA TR EE N EEELE!
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax HIEAEERE  MELEMERLRE KA
liabilities and when the deferred income tax relates to the same tax FHER - ARG HEEEAEERE -
jurisdiction. The offset amounts are as follows: HIHS BT -
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Deferred income tax assets BIEFBHEE(BRBGE
(to be recovered after more than 12 months) +={@R%R[E) 3,208 4,373
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFMBHAE(BRBGE
(to be settled after more than 12 months) +-EBEEE) (14,009) (10,260)
(10,801) (5,887)
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows: RIEFTISTER B &8 FEaan T
2013 2012
=5 —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARBT T
At 1st January ®—H—H (5.887) (6,341)
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated statement (%) st AE R W=
of comprehensive income (note 30) (FfzE30) (4,914) 454
At 31st December Wt+=—A=+—8 (10,801) (5,887)
smeaRan-0355% ()
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B HP R

24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP (continued)

24 EEFIEH — £l @)

As at 31st December 2013, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB23,727,000 (2012: RMB7,707,000) have not been recognised for
the withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of subsidiaries in the PRC. The unremitted earnings are to be used for
long-term future development. The income tax liability is not recognised
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same taxation jurisdiction, are as follows:

RZB—=F+-"A=+—H0 BAETHH
BB A B 2 AR BE ) 28 ) P = 1+ 0 TE I i oK e
RIELEMSHAEARK23,727,000(=F
——%F : AR#¥7,707,0007T) ° K[EHBFE
FAERKRREAERE o (4R =588 0 MR H
AEEEG KRG EFEEERRRTEER
| - AN FHRREHAE -

FREEHAEERA B ORGT RIEHAR
B EDERER AR AT -

Deferred tax assets EERIBEEE
Tax losses
BIEEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
At 1st January wW—H—H 4,901 3,112
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated statement (%) st AL BHEA s =
of comprehensive income (1,165) 1,789
At 31st December W+=—A=+—8 3,736 4,901
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEARS
Deferred expenses
EEM Y
2013 2012
—Eg—-= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBTTT
At 1st January n—A—H 10,788 9,453
Charged to the consolidated statement REPHRE KR MGk
of comprehensive income 3,749 1,335
At 31st December Rt+—_A=+—8H 14,537 10,788
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B AR

24

25

26

DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (Continued) 24 BEFREB —AEE )
Deferred tax liabilities (Continued) BEEBEEE(E)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forwards MERATE TS FI 2 1R K 7] B 38 38 2R SR P& AR Bt i 1| &2
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through R ARBEEMEREERALEESHIES
future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred 18 o AR EN MR A A SR R RS F A FERR
tax assets (2013: Nil; 2012: RMB102,000) in respect of tax losses (2013: BAZHESR(ZE—=F: & —_T——
Nil; 2012: RMB408,000) that can be carried forward against future F: AR¥408,00070) BRELEHBEEE (=
taxable income within 5 years. T—=F:&: _T—_F : AR%102,000
JT) °
INCOME TAX PAYABLE AND OTHER TAXES 25 BEZFEH R HEMEMRBE— A
PAYABLE - GROUP 56
2013 2012
—g—= — T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARBFIT
Income tax payable: FESFIISH
Corporate income tax EAEH 22,436 15,814
Other taxes payable: HAbEHTIE
Value added tax EER 7,523 4,839
Cultural and development tax XA R EEREFR 367 590
Other taxes HAbFiE 9,921 2,937
17,811 8,366
OTHER INCOME 26 HAWA

2013 2012
—2—= —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TT ARBFTT

Government grants BT

3,473 3,307

The Group received grants mainly from various local tax authorities in the
PRC for promoting electronic trading platform amongst the enterprises
in the PRC, the conditions specified in the government approval were
fully achieved during the year.

REETZ2 G EZEDBEEREREE) - A
EEETRECERZEFRSTE  REMA
HXARTRAZ G ERFE R B
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27 EXPENSES BY NATURE 27 RMBESEZER

2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Direct expenses of trade catalogues and TITH¥EHA=EEERZ

yellow page directories BEER 19,985 25,784
Direct expenses of on-line services BERRG 2 BEEEA 157,349 72,368
Direct expenses of seminars and other services Mele kMRS EZER 42,238 38,368
Marketing expenses MG HEEEH 50,467 25,625
Network and telephone expenses ek R E A 11,214 12,060
Auditor's remuneration ZEETB & 1,981 2,018
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments BTN BIEEEME)

(note 28) (PfF5E28) 296,894 230,109
Amortisation of land use rights (note 6) Tt R 2 B 4R (P9 3E6) 430 427
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 7) AR 2B (FEET) 4 455
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEREZITE

(note 8) (PM5E8) 23,503 20,328
Provision for impairment and write off of JE U BR TR 2 R (B 188 4 e il £

trade receivables (note 13) (FF3E13) 2,533 1,015
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEKRE2EE

equipment (Yzs) 281 (29)
Operating lease payments in respect of land BRI RIETF 7 &ERANFK

and buildings 14,132 14,381
Direct write off of other receivables Eh fE I GRTE 2 B - 1,980
Travelling expenses RiBRERE 9,810 9,464
Other expenses Hfb A 40,462 30,387
Total cost of revenue, selling and marketing HERA - SHENTHEEEF

expenses and administrative expenses LARATINE F4a%E 671,283 484,740
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BTSRRI TE

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

28 EEBAFX

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Wages and salaries TERHS 256,901 205,703
Retirement benefits costs (a) ERIREFIKA () 17,427 15,640
Share based compensation — share option scheme  LARR 5 S A+ 2 418 — B R e =T 21 2,744 1,335
Share based compensation — share award scheme ARG S 15 2 #i 18 — M 22 BhET &1 19,822 7,431

296,894 230,109

The employee benefits expenses amounting to RMB2,702,000 (2012:
RMB2,497,000), RMB79,218,000 (2012: RMB54,024,000) and
RMB214,974,000 (2012: RMB173,588,000) are recognised in cost of
revenue, administrative expenses and selling and marketing expenses,
respectively in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

(a)

In accordance with the PRC regulations, the Group is required to
make annual contributions to the state retirement plans calculated
at 20% of the basic salaries of the employees, and employees are
required to contribute 8% of their basic salaries to the plans. The
Group has no obligations for further pension payments or any
post-retirement benefits beyond these annual contributions. The
retirement benefits are paid directly from the plan assets to the
retired employees and are calculated by reference to their monthly
basic salaries at the date of retirement and periods of service
rendered.

As at 31st December 2013, there were no forfeited contributions
available to offset future retirement benefit obligations of the
Group.

EERABALZAH AR 27020007 (=
T——fF: AR¥2497,000) « AR
79,218,0007T( = ZE— =4 : AFR#54,024,000
T) R AR®214,974,000(ZFE——4F : A
R#173,588,0007T) 7 Blst A& BiR & ek
MIHERAE THREAURBERTSHES
)EH °

(@) BRETERY  AEESFARESR
REF220% M BEFEMRAEIHK  ES
AlZARZ S BIER EEAH £8% 2 fft
Ko RREFEREFON - NEBEHEARE
HARARE M ARFRAEARIRIRIER] BRI
BMmZE B EET RN TRINE
8 - WRZHENRRBSZ ZEARAFRIE
RS2 FHEE -

RIZE—=F+"A=+—8  HEK
WHAI AR EHEAEE B IRRKREMNE
£
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BTSRRI TE

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued) 28 EEBABEXZ @)
(b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (b) EEREREEBEASHS
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31st BE_T—=F1+-_A=+—HItFE -
December 2013 is set out as below: BEEEZHMEIOT
Share based
Employer's compensation
Salaryand  contribution from share
discretionary to pension option
Name of Director Fees bonus scheme schemes Total
DR % A3
MK RIKGHEIZ 2
EEns ne BBEA BEMR -BRELE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETTT ARBTT ARBTTT ARETT

Director Mr. GUO Fansheng

= BRERE = 600 59 - 659
Mr. GUO Jiang (Note 1)
I (Fizt1) - 600 59 5,011 5,670
Mr. LEE Wee Ong
LEE Wee Ong’t 4
Mr. Ll Jianguang
FRAEE 100 - - - 100
Mr. ZHANG Ke
RRE4E 100 - - - 100
Mr. XIANG Bing
BEEE = = = = =
Mr. GUO Wei
BREE = = = = =
Mr. ZHANG Tim Tianwei
RAELE 100 - - - 100

1,934 = 1,985 3,919

Total
wst 300 3,134 118 6,996 10,548

Note 1: Mr. Guo Jiang is a director and also the chief executive officer. FIaET LR ERESERITHABH °
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BTSRRI TE

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued)
(b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (Continued) (b)

The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31st
December 2012 is set out as below:

28 EERABEX @)

EEREREBABMS(E
HE-_T——F+-RA=+—HIEFE
EEZZHMEINWT

Share based
Employer's  compensation
Salaryand  contribution from share
discretionary to pension option
Name of Director Fees bonus scheme schemes Total
DR At
FHR BIRGHEZ i
EEpsg e MiFfA BEMR  -BRESE @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
Director Mr. GUO Fansheng
B FRAERE - 600 53 - 653
Mr. GUO Jiang (Note 1)
FWITRE (izE1) - 600 53 4,053 4,706
Ms. GUO Bingbing (Note 2)
Bkt (fizE2) - 550 13 79 642
Mr. LI Jianguang
FTRREE - - - - -
Mr. ZHANG Ke
R LE 100 - - - 100
Mr. XIANG Bing
BHERE 100 - - - 100
Mr. GUO Wei
FREE = = = = =
Mr. LEE Wee Ong (Note 3)
LEE Wee Ongst £ (FizE3) 50 360 - 1,168 1,578
Mr. ZHANG Tim Tianwei
RRERE 100 - - - 100
Total
@t 350 2,110 119 5,300 7,879
Note 1: Mr. Guo Jiang is a director and also the chief executive officer. BiET T RAEREFFRITHAE -
Note 2: Ms. Guo Bingbing resigned as an executive director with effect BHEE2 BRKEZTHERTES 5=

Note 3:

from 1st July 2012.

Mr. Lee Wee Ong was re-designated from a non-executive
director to an executive director on 1st July 2012.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31st
December 2013 and 2012.

L A-HEEX-

Bi5E3 - Lee Wee Ongft EM=_F——F+
H—BRFATEER/ERANT
B=-

HE-_ZTZ—=k=-ZT——-%+=A

=+ HLEFE  BEEFHREXRE
WEE ML -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued) 28 EERAMAZ @

(c) Five highest paid individuals (c)
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include two (2012: two) directors whose
emolument is reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid and payable to the three (2012: three) individuals
during the year are as follows:

RfUREHFAL
AEERFARIUSESHALTEEREE
F(ZF—F MR EFZFHER
EXFRESNZ DM RER - RERERNT
F=R(CB——F =) ALZHem
™

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREET T

Basic salaries, housing allowances, share options, EHAH 4 - BE28L - BAE

other allowances and benefits in kind H4=ERE R BRI 4,046 3,708
Retirement plan contributions RIRETEIMHK 110 36
4,156 3,744

The emoluments for these three individuals (2012: three) fell within
the following bands:

EoR(ZE——F =) ATHHEE
ERONNE

Number of individuals

A
2012
—E——F
Nil to HKD1,000,000 (equivalent to Nil 021,000,000/ 7T (FHER0E
to RMB810,900) AER#810,9007T) - -
HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000 1,000,001/8 T2 1,500,000/ 7T
(equivalent to RMB810,901 to (FBENARKS10,901TE
RMB1,216,350) AR#1,216,3507T) 2 2
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,00178 7L 22,000,000/8 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,216,351 to (FBERARY1,216,351LF
RMB1,621,800) AE#1,621,8007T) - =
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 22,500,000/ 7T
(equivalent to RMB 1,621,801 to (FHHERARX1,621,801LE
RMB2,027,250) AE#2,027,2507T) 1 1
(d) During the year, no emoluments have been paid by the Group d) FA - KAEEVWERESS EXATR AL

to the directors or the five highest paid individuals mentioned
above as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office (2012: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AR

29 FINANCE INCOME, NET

30

29

BB WA R

2013 2012
—=—= —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARBFIT
Interest expense: MESH
— Other borrowings —HAifE & (7,546) -
— Finance lease liabilities —REHEERMT (340) (615)
Finance expenses A& (7,886) (615)
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets B AEEREENENME SR 7,546 =
Total finance expenses BhE T 48 E (340) (615)
Finance income S ON 16,555 11,807
Net finance income BMEWAEE 16,215 11,192
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 30 PRSI
2013 2012
—2—= —ET——%F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFIT
Current income tax expense EHMGHRAX
— Hong Kong profits tax (note a) —BBFIEH (FizEa) - =
— The PRC Corporate income tax (“CIT") (note b) — R B EEFTIS R
(TeZmmEH) (Hizb) 29,678 13,359
Deferred income tax expense/(credit) (note 24) EEATSHFAS(He) (HizE24) 4,914 (454)
34,592 12,905
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI TE

30 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 30 FrEHR X (®)

(@) No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as there is no (@) HREFAABREBELERTRN -

assessable profit arising in Hong Kong for the year (2012 Nil). AR EBMNETIELBE (T —=
F|E)o

(b) The PRC corporate income tax represents taxation charged on (b) FREIFEAEBEFAERNEERP R
assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in TP S MES T 3R 77850 28 B P R U8
the cities in the PRC in which the Group operates. Wz 1A -
The tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC is 25%, EFREKI HBARBERBEAR
except for subsidiaries granted with preferential tax treatment as 25% - B TIERS MBI E ZHE
High/New Technology Enterprise of which the applicable tax rates is AEIA ZERBER  HER15% 2 ERB
15%. KT o

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations B G AR B E SRR BRI & A 2 B TE Bl

differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation FRARSEERRMEER 2B XA ERFER

rate of the home country of the Group companies as follows: HEEERNAT :

2013 2012
—EB—=F —E—C—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET R ARETTT

Profit before income tax R PSR E A1 186,126 78,327
Tax calculated at 25% (2012: 25%) 1L 25% Rt E 7 TR
(ZF—=F : 25%) 46,532 19,582

Effect of different taxation rates in other cities/ HMWmRATRFRR IR E

under preferential tax treatment BEMRIZE (13,550) (6,560)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes A2 S 1,712 1,414
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses R RAIKRER < IR EE (102) =
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset RIEFTIST B EAR THERZ

was recognised TiIEEE - 102
Utilisation of previously unrecognised capital AR R AR FERE AN AR

allowance - (1,633)
Income tax expense s> 34,592 12,905

31 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF 31 XA RIRERIFHAE(LERE
THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt RRARIERFE AL EE ARK?23,642,000
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of T(ZE——F : AR 9,494,0007T) BEAEARR
RMB23,642,000 (2012: RMB9,494,000). RIS IR o
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BTSRRI TE

32 EARNINGS PER SHARE 32 BREF

2013 2012
—Eg—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 782 El#Ez515H A FE(L %7 153,326 66,724

2013 2012

—E—=5F —E——F

No. of shares No. of shares

RS EE [:ghar 2 ¢E|

(‘000) ("'000)

(F8&) (FRR)

Weighted average number of shares in issue BTG 2 T8 B 582,199 554,035
Incremental shares from assumed exercise of share R TR B IR AR T 3 N2

options granted R tn 33,792 34,748

Diluted weighted average number of shares BT IR 615,991 588,783

Basic earnings per share (in RMB) BRERBF(ARE) 0.2634 0.1204

Diluted earnings per share (in RMB) SREERF(ARE) 0.2489 0.1133
33 DIVIDENDS 33 KRB

No dividend was paid or declared by the Company during the year (2012: RARAREFEVERNXERRE(ZE—Z

Nil). Fm) o

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there was no arrangement BEEMAA  DHEBET—=F1+=7

under which a shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends =t+t—BERZET—-F+-A=1+—HIEF

during the years ended 31st December 2013 and 31st December 2012, B HMERRRNEXRERETAREFTL
respectively. ZHE -
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BTSRRI TE

34 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 3 REXBEEZRSE
(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash (a) BRBANRAEKLEERCBERAFEY
generated from operating activities R
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%ET R ARBFIT
Profit before income tax BRI A 186,126 78,327
Adjustments for: FE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥1% « B/E K a&fE 2 8 (H7E8)

(note 8) 23,503 20,328
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 7) | R E#E (T 4 455
Provision for impairment and write off of U AR T 2 R (B B 4 R il 3

trade receivables 2,533 1,015
Direct write-off of other receivables HoAth fEGRIE E A8 - 1,980
Amortisation of land use rights - b {50 R A 8 430 427
Share based compensation — value of AR A5 2 1 (8 — B B ARG (BB

employee services (note 28) (Bf3E28) 22,566 8,766
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, LEME  BERSE2EER

plant and equipment (note b) (UWezs) (FfisEb) 281 (29)
Interest income M EWA (16,555) (11,807)
Interest expense FERZ 340 615
Operating profit before working capital LiBEE S FER 2w T

changes 219,228 100,077
Changes in working capital: EEEASHES
Acquisition of properties under development — UBE#EEH &38R %

held for sale (208,268) -
Changes in trade receivables FEURBR SR 5214 1,399
Changes in deposits, prepayment and other e BENFER

receivables E A EGRIE S E) 3,281 8,503
Changes in amount due from a related FE U ERHS A R R IR

company (18) (48)
Changes in direct selling costs HEHERAE (51,251) (15,625)
Changes in trade payables ARE (203) 540
Changes in accrued expenses and other EEEAR

payables E AT RRIE & 31,794 6,299
Changes in deferred revenue IRIEM A 165,317 46,597
Changes in other tax payable H AT TE 9,445 (1,417)
Net cash generated from operations RERBEE 2 IREFRE 174,539 146,325
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BTSRRI TE

34 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 34
(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment (b)
In the consolidated cash flow statements, proceeds from disposal
of property, plant and equipment comprise:

REEBREE RS

HEME - BERRBZAERE
EEHRESRERAN  HEME  BEX
R ZFAERARSE

2013 2012
= —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Net book amount; BREVFE -
Property, plant and equipment (note 8) MEE - R N (KTEES) 1,161 30
(Loss)/Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BERREZ
plant and equipment (note 27) (F518), e (B E27) (281) 29
Proceeds from disposal of property, HeEWmE  BERSRELZ
plant and equipment FfS skIE 880 59
() Non-cash transactions () ¥EBLXRH

There was approximately RMB814,000 as at 31 December 2012
and in respect of purchases of property, plant and equipment
which have not been paid as at year end. In addition, there was
approximately RMB5,368,000 in respect of purchases of property,
plant and equipment settled by finance lease obligations for the
year ended 31st December 2012.

35 COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments (a)
Capital expenditure contracted for at the year end 31st December
2013 but not yet incurred is as follows:

BE_Z——+-A=+—8 BEEm
REFEOMZE - BB MR 2 ZIEH AR
814,0007T ° WHh  BEZZT——F+=
A=+—BLLFE  ERBITHEHRER
EMBEZYE  BEEIEHARE
5,368,0007T °

35 &iE

BEARELRE
BE_T=Ft_A=t—HLFE"
BERTAVEMAREEZ BARAENT

2013 2012
—_E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Property, plant and equipment M R NERE 53,304 -
Investment properties and properties under EMEREREP Y
development 284,050 -
337,354 -
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) EEBHRE

At 31st December 2013, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of buildings which expire as follows:

RZZE—=F+=ZA=+—8 X5Ez
BF 2 BRI R S L B R EN
ZRIEEEFIALRMT

2012

—EF—=
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR#TT ARETTT
Within one year —FR 13,529 9,806
In the second to fifth year inclusive FIEERF(RIEEEMT) 28,276 2,051
41,805 11,857
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BTSRRI TE

36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36 HAREE
As at 31st December 2013, there were no material contingent liabilities RZE—=F+-_A=+—H AEEMEE
to the Group (2012: Nil). AREIABE(ZE—ZF : ) -
37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 BEALRSB
The following significant transactions were carried out with related AT RMEEEBATEITZCEARS
parties:
(a) Sales of services (a) SHERK
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARET T
Sales of services THE IRTS
-t REREREEERNERAR — R EHEEREESFRNEGRAT
(technology services) (i) (BT AR ) () 21 211
- R EREREEERNERAR — I REEEREEFRAEGRAT
(be granted the right to use the (FERRE(L AR R AR (i)
domain names and trademark) (ii) 240 240
451 451

(i)

I REBEEREEAMNBRAR, a company owned as to
80% by Mr. Guo Fansheng, the Chairman of the board of
directors and an executive director of the Company, entered
into a three-year Technology Services Agreement with the
Group in 2002, and on 31st December 2004, the parties
entered into a supplemental agreement which extended the
term of the Technology Services Agreement to 31st December
2007 and on 30th December 2007, 30th December 2009
and 30th December 2011, the parties entered into another
supplemental agreements which extended the term of the
Technology Services Agreement to 31st December 2009, 31st
December 2011 and 31st December 2014 respectively.

Pursuant to the agreement, the Group received technical
service income from 4t REIERE (= B4 AR A A based
on the working hours devoted to the service and support.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AR

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

37 BABALRZ @

(a) Sales of services (Continued) (a) SHERK(E)

(i) RBEERELSAXAER AT entered into a three-year iy M-TZT-F tREBRERELS
Domain Names and Trademark Licence Agreement with the BHAERRQ Tﬁﬁi$‘§luTi m=
Group in 2002, and on 31st December 2004, the parties FHEEZ REET A HE  R=F
entered into a supplemental agreement which extended ZWFE+=ZA=1T— E%??;.Ti%ﬁ
the term of the Domain Names and Trademark Licence T - KR kSR A HaE T
Agreement to 31st December 2007 and on 30th December HE_TT+F+_A=+—QH "
2007, 30th December 2009 and 31st December 2011, the RZZTTLF+=-A=+H =%
parties entered into another supplemental agreements which TNF+_A=FTHER=ZT—F
extended the term of the Domain names and Trademark +ZA=+—8 €FBEILHET
Licence to 31st December 2009, 31st December 2011 and iz H#W% KRR 9 Bl
31st December 2014 respectively. EHE_ZTTZAF+-_A=+—

H - ZZ——&%+=-A=+—HBK

—ET—MmFE+=-A=+—H-
Pursuant to the agreement, Jt RERERE EFEAER BIEW - bR BRSNS BT
A7) was granted the right to use the domain names and BERAFIRETEERERELHZ
trademark owned or attained by the Group during the AN BT A S ES 21
agreement period for a fixed fee. B R EHR ©

Purchases of services (b) HBERK

2013 2012
—F2—= —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T

Purchases of services: EE R

-t REREXEEFZAEGRA — Ik REREREEHAEGRA
(online information d|str|but|on services) (i) (B L&A MRS ) () 240 240

-t RERELEEFZAEGRA — I REREREEHAEGRA
(online advertisement pubhcatlon services) (ii) (48 | & & T RS ) (i) 100 100

340 340

() RBEERELAXAERALT entered into a three-year () MZZBZE-F - tREBRERE

Online Information Distribution Agreement with the Group
in 2002, and on 31st December 2004, 30th December 2007,
30th December 2009 and 30th December 2011, the parties
entered into supplemental agreements which extended the
term of the Online Information Distribution Agreement to
31st December 2007, 31st December 2009, 31st December
2011 and 31st December 2014 respectively. Pursuant to the
Online Information Distribution Agreement, 1t R 2 Ha5E %
Z BB R A A received distribution income from the
Group at a fixed fee. It disseminated the Group’s business
information and research reports on its web-site and on those
as stipulated by the Group.

BHAAR AR HBARNEB Y —
M=FHBEEEBRMRE RN
—FEENEFE+=—A=+—H =
THF+-A=+TH ZZTThF
+ZA=+BER=F—%+=A
=+H  €FFIuERmE B8
L ERBRHHEILERE_TT
tF+=-_A=+—H8 ZFTAF
+=—A=+—8 ZB——%+=
BE=+—BE-_Z—WN&+_A
:+ H-RBEAEEEEME
A RERERESRAERA
T&Im%%ﬁ$$lWW%%W
A o ZAREERU RAEBIETE
2 A8k EEBm A B R s B R

TIRE ©
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B HP R

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Purchases of services (Continued)

(ii)

it RERE L= SAAAMR AT entered into a three-year
Online Advertisement Publication Agreement with the Group
in 2002, and on 31st December 2004, 30th December 2007,
30th December 2009 and 30th December 2011, the parties
entered into supplemental agreements which extended the
term of Online Advertisement Publication Agreement to 31st
December 2007, 31st December 2009, 31st December 2011
and 31st December 2014 respectively. Pursuant to the Online
Advertisement Publication Agreement, bt RS HEH{E L
KA MR A7 received publication income from the Group
at a fixed fee. It published the Group’s advertisements on its
website and on those as stipulated by the Group.

(c) Key management compensation

37 BEBALR B

(b) BERBE(E)
iy R-ZTZT_F tREBEREXRE
BHABERARENEET Y —
P=FHBLEETEHE v%
—TENF+=—A=+—8 "
TtEF+ZA=+H ZTTNF
+:HE+E&:§**¢+:H
E+E EHII AR
%ﬂ%%ﬁ%k@§,22
t¢+fﬂ:+ H - ZZTNF
+=ZA=+—H -ZZF—&+=
A=+—Bk=_ZF—HNF+=A
=+—H BEALESTEH
& EREBRERESHEAERA
AR [E E & R A2 & B R & 45 T
FWA - ZAREAEBI RAEE
feE 2 i E B AREES -

() ZREBASHMH

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARET T
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits ¥4 & E 4th 55 Hi{E 2 & 6,200 5,739
Share-based payments LARGAD AR 2 3R 10,008 6,988
16,208 12,727
38 EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 38 “EHREE

An extraordinary general meeting of the Company was held on 9th
January 2014 and approved to establish Chongging Digital China
Huicong Micro-Credit Co., Ltd.(EE#INEIEZIR/ NEERER Q)
which will be owned as to 60% by Digital China Holdings Limited and
as to 40% by the Company (or their respective nominee subsidiaries)
for the purpose of the development and operation of the micro-credit
internet financing business. The registered capital of this company shall

be RMB1,000,000,000.
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